6:00 pm

6:10 pm
6:20 pm

6:25 pm

6:30 pm
6:50 pm

7:00 pm

7:35 pm

7:50 pm

8:00 pm

8:10 pm

8:15 pm

MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD
MEETING AGENDA

FULLER MEADOW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

NATHAN MEDIA CENTER
143 SOUTH MAIN STREET, MIDDLETON, MA 01949
TUESDAY, MARCH 5, 2024
6:00 PM
This meeting is being recorded
Business

a. Warrant: 2418 and FP34
b. Minutes: February 20, 2024 OS; February 20, 2024 ES
¢. Town Administrator Updates and Reports

2.  Public Comment
3. Board and Committee Appointments:
a.  Cultural Council (1): Joanne Plourde
b. ICDRC (1 member, 2 alt): Peter Graziani
4.  Create 5 member Planning Director Screening Committee and appoint Town Admin., Asst. Town
Admin., one member of the Select Board. (Planning Board and ZBA to appoint their own designee)
5. Locust St. Parcel engineering discussion with Scott Cameron of the Morin-Cameron Group, Inc.
6. Vote on One Day Liquor License for Winter Hill Brewing (Indignant Brewing Co LLC) for The Lot
on South Main Street
7. Joint meeting with the Middleton Planning Board
a. Planning Board alternate candidates —David Lebel, Joanne Plourde
b. Review Zoning Amendments to the Zoning Bylaw and Map for an MBTA Communities
Overlay District, Two-Family Dwellings, and Accessory Dwelling Units from the Planning Board
and refer them to the Planning Board for public hearing and recommendation
8.  Transfer Station sticker fee schedule and recommendation from Solid Waste Advisory Committee
9.  Select Board MassDOT Letter of Support for Signalled Arrow at Intersection of Rt114 and Rt62
10. Review new non-union classifications for three positions (all positions previously unclassified) and
review market rate adjustment recommendation from the Collins Center
11. Updates & Announcements
12.  Executive Session pursuant to G.L. c. 304, s. 21(a)(3) to discuss strategy with respect to collective
bargaining negotiations: AFCSME Representation Petition
13.  Executive Session pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, s. 21(a)(2) — Police Chief Contract Negotiations
Upcoming Meetings: March 19 Regular Select Board Meetings
March 28 Budget Hearing and Warrant Reading
May 14 Annual Town Meeting 7 pm at Howe-Manning

Elementary School

The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may in fact be discussed
and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.



i)

Justin Sultzbach

From: Brian LaRoche <blaroche@pca360.com>
Sent: Wednesday, February 28, 2024 10:20 AM
To: Justin Sultzbach

Subject: Re: FP Warrant 34

[CAUTION:] This message was sent from outside of the Town of Middleton. Please do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the source of this email and know the content is safe.
Hello Justin,

Please see a summary of the invoices contained in Warrant FP 34:

o Context Architecture - The architectural design team of Context includes a team of sub consultants
from GGD (Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing, Fire Protection) Bohler (Civil), Environmental and Food
Service that are working on developing the bidding documents for the MMC project that are called
Construction Contract Drawings. Context and their team are about 99% complete with the effort and
delivered a progress set of drawings that numbered 240 sheets for the project. The bid documents will
be issued on 2/28/24.

o HSI - Is a company that was hired to conduct pre-construction survey of adjoining properties to the
project site. The purpose of the survey is to create a baseline condition of the neighboring properties
prior to the start of construction. The first step for HSI is to mail certified letters to the abutters offering
to schedule a time to have HSI conduct an optional photo/video survey of their property.

o PCA360 - Is the Owner Project Manager for the Town. PCA360 is managing the team (designer,
construction manager, Town vendors) and advocating on behalf of the Town throughout the course of
the projec.t This month PCA360 has reviewed two progress sets of drawings and provided review
comments to the design team. PCA360 attendeds multiple coordination meetings throughout the week
with various team members. PCA360 is also working on procurement of Town vendors for various
scopes.

« TERVA - Is the Commissioning agent for the Town, they are and independent 3™ party that is
responsible for the functional testing of the systems once installed, at this point in the project they are
reviewing the engineering of the project as well as the building envelope and providing comments to the
design team to incorporate into the bidding documents. TERVA has been participating in weekly
review calls with the design team for both the systems and envelope.

BEST REGARDS,
BRIAN LAROCHE

PCA360

75 SECOND AVE, SUITE 305
NEEDHAM, MA 02494
WWW.PCA360.COM

T:617.723.5056
M:617.680.1286

The content of this email and any files transmitted are confidential and only intended for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. It
is strictly forbidden to share any part of this message with any third party without the written consent of the sender.

From: Justin Sultzbach <justin.sultzbach@middletonma.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, February 28, 2024 9:17 AM



MEETING MINUTES
MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD MEETING
FULLER MEADOW SCHOOL, NATHAN MEDIA CENTER
143 SOUTH MAIN STREET, MIDDLETON, MA 01949
TUESDAY February 20, 2024 at 6:00 PM

This meeting was in person, broadcast live and recorded by Civic Media and posted on You Tube.

Select Board present: Chair Jeff Garber; Rick Kassiotis, Clerk; Brian Cresta, Kosta Prentakis, Debbie Carbone
Also attending: Justin Sultzbach, Town Administrator (TA); Jackie Bresnahan Assistant Town Administrator
(ATA) /Human Resource Director; and others as noted.

With a quorum present Chair Garber called the meeting to order at 6 pm.

The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may in fact be
discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.

Business

Warrant 2417 of February 22, 2024: Payroll $ 802,504; Bills payable $ 962,221; FP: 33 - $ 27,056

The Town Accountant/Finance Director Sarah Wood has reviewed the warrant and requested the Board’s
approval. Town Administrator Sultzbach provided a brief overview of the warrant presented for approval.

On a motion by Prentakis second by Cresta, the Select Board voted unanimously to approve Warrant
2417 & FP 33 as presented.

a. Minutes — On a motion by Kassiotis second by Cresta, the Board voted unanimously to approve the
meeting minutes of February 6, 2024 OS; February 6, 2024 ES.

b. Acceptance of Donations — On a motion by Kassiotis, seconded by Cresta, the Board voted unanimously
to accept the donation of $ 1,000 to the Middleton Food Pantry from Bethesda Lodge.

¢. Town Administrator Updates & Reports ~J. Sultzbach

e . Sultzbach received a draft of the Angelica’s 40B Development Agreement. We will be reviewing this
with Legal Counsel, with a draft to come forward to the Select Board in March.

e J. Sultzbach had a meeting with the Morin-Cameron Group regarding the engineering at the Locust Street
property. They have agreed to join the Select Board at your upcoming March 5™ meeting to discuss the
scope of work for the property.

e We held a “Startup” meeting with the consultant that is exploring options for the Memorial Hall parcel
upon our departure. As part of this process they will be going before various players in town — including a
visit to an upcoming Select Board meeting. J. Bresnahan was recognized for coordinating the consultant.

e J. Sultzbach had the pleasure of attending the Chocolate Walk on the Rail Trail with his family earlier this
month. A huge thank you to all of the volunteers that worked so hard to make the Rail Trail a reality, and
a thank you for all of the work they do to support this important community asset; the walk was well
attended.

e Our team is working to finalize the FY25 Capital Plan. We have spent the past several weeks meeting with
Department Heads, with a final meeting held today to discuss the finer details. Our second “Budget
Saturday” is set to be held on Saturday, March 2", starting promptly at 8:30am at the Fuller Meadow
School.

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
February 20, 2024 Page 1/4



¢ J.Sultzbach have been meeting with PCA 360 to review the 95% plans for the Municipal Building project.
We remain on target for a late April/Early May groundbreaking. The board had questions regarding
residents hooking up to water mains being installed for the new facility project.

2. Public Comment - There was none.

3. Recommendation by the Police Chief - Appointment of full-time Police Officer Roby Deschenes

Police Captain Matthew Armitage and Officer Roby Deschenes were present. Officer Deschenes previously
worked in Middleton, attended the Police Academy, and received his Master’s Degree. The Board spoke in
support of Officer Deschenes returning to Middleton and supported the Chief’s recommendation. This
appointment included a one year probation period.

On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Cresta, the Board voted unanimously to appoint Roby
Deschenes as full-time police officer for the Middleton Police Department for term through June 30,
2025,

The Town Clerk was present and swore in Officer Deschenes as a full time officer.

4. Appointment of the tenant member of the Middleton Housing Authority - Candidate Sharon Purchase
S. Purchase was present and spoke on her request to be appointed as the tenant member of the Middleton
Housing Authority. As a new resident to Middleton she would like to contribute and advocate for other
residents. S. Purchase was open to volunteering in other capacities.

On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Cresta, the Board voted unanimously to appoint Sharon
Purchase as the tenant member of the Middleton Housing Authority for a five-year term to expire
June 30, 2029.

5. Joint meeting with the Middleton Charter Review Committee — Discussion of potential charter
amendments and timeline for Annual Town Meeting 2024,

With a quorum present the chair called the meeting to order at 6:15 pm. Present: Frank Twiss, Chair;
Sharon Bainbridge; George Dow Sr; Sarah George; Natalie Lovett; James Vining. Not present: Trevor Currier
F. Twiss reviewed the Chapter Committee is in the process of reviewing the Charter in detail and updating
terms and language and will prepare recommendations for consideration by the Board. He spoke in general
terms on sections of the Charter and noted the Committee will have a recommendations to the Select Board
to be reviewed by Town Counsel. J. Sultzbach Town Administrator participated in the discussion on the office
of the Town Administrator’s role. F. Twiss said this would not be ready for 2024 Town Meeting.

It was agreed to have another joint meeting to discuss the proposed changes.

The Committee unanimously adjourned at 6:25 pm.

6. Continue Review of Articles for Warrant for the Annual Town Meeting (ATM), May 14, 2024

The Town Moderator Barbara Piselli was present for this agenda item. J. Sultzbach gave an overview of the
ATM warrant, currently with 22 articles, and updated the Board on the recent changes/updates made.
There was a brief review of the state mandate for MBTA communities to create zoning for multi-family
housing by right and the possible financial consequence to towns that do not follow the bylaw.

B. Cresta requested a discussion on making a recommendation for the one time significant increase in
investment income; this will be part of the capital meeting March 3.

The schools continue to work on “tightening” the budget.

7. Approval of vendor contract for Middleton Communications Tower — Industrial Communication

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
February 20, 2024 Page 2/4



This vendor, Industrial Communication is on the state contract list. The communications tower is a part of the
municipal complex project and construction budget. It was determined using the vendor for all aspects of the
construction of the 80 foot tower was fiscally beneficial. The Town will work with the OPM to get final
documents, design, and pricing. Middleton Fire will do the final detail work.

Although there is additional room on the tower, it is not certain at this time if there is room for i.e. cellular
use for revenue; an RFP will be issued if this is determined to be a viable plan.

On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Carbone, the Board voted unanimously to approve industrial
Communications LLC for the Middleton Communications Tower.

8. Follow up: MSBA {Massachusetts School Board Authority) Vote to Authorize Superintendent of School
Scott Morrison to submit a Statement of Interest for the Fuller Meadow School roof repairs.

J. Sultzbach reviewed at the last meeting a high level of scope was requested. The director of facilities Steve
Clifford provided a brief scope to re-reof approximately 32,000 square feet of the Fuller Meadow School at an
estimated cost of $2.2 million pending additional associated costs and inflation. This is on the spring 2024
capital plan in the event MSBA approves the project.

K. Prentakis compared this to the Masco project estimated at $30M for roof, HVAC, and building
management system and suggested Steve Clifford speak with Jeff Sands to compare cost & projects.

On a motion by Kassiotis, seconded by Carbone, the Middleton Select Board voted unanimously to

support the following statement:
Having convened in an open meeting February 20, 2024, prior to the Statement of Interest submission closing
date, the Middleton Select Board, in accordance with its charter, by-laws ,and ordinances, hereby votes to
authorize the Superintendent to submit to the Massachusetts School Building Authority the Statement of
Interest Form dated 28 February 2024 for the Fuller Meadow Elementary School, located at 143 South Main
Street, Middleton, Massachusetts which describes and explains the following deficiencies and the priority
category(s) for which an application may be submitted to the Massachusetts School Building Authority in the
future:
Priority 1.
The Middleton Public Schools seeks to replace a section of roofing of approximate 31,724 5qFt in size, located
in the south west area of the school. The roofing is original to its section of the school building, constructed in
1995-1996. The roof is of ethylene propylene diene monomer (EPDM) synthetic rubber construction. The
roofing has exceeded its service life and is in need of replacement to secure the safety, health, and function of
the classrooms, gymnasium, and hallways it serves below, and hereby further specifically acknowledges that
by submitting the Statement of Interest Form the Massachusetts School Building Authority in no way
guarantees the acceptance or the approval of an application, the awarding of a grant, or any other funding
commitment from the Massachusetts School Building Authority, or commits the Town of Middleton to filing
an application for funding with the Massachusetts School Building Authority.

9. Updates & Announcements
March 12 — Planning Board Public Hearing on Zoning

10. Executive Session 7:09pm:
On a motion by Cresta, seconded by Kassiotis, the Board voted unanimously by roll call to enter into
Executive Session pursuant to GLC 30A s. 21 (a) (2) To conduct strategy session in preparation for
negotiations with nonunion personnel: Review new non-union classifications for three positions all
positions previously unclassified) and review market rate adjustment recommendation from the Collin
Center and not return to open session but adjourn directly from executive session.

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
February 20, 2024 Page 3/4



Adjournment: The Board unanimously voted by roll call to enter executive session and not return to open
session at 7:10 pm
The Board unanimously by roll call adjourned at 8:38pm.

Upcoming Meetings:

Select Board Meetings: March 5 & 19

March 2 - Saturday Capital Budget Meeting
March 28- Budget Hearing & Warrant Reading

Respectfully submitted by,
Catherine E. Tinsley
Catherine Tinsley, Recording Secretary

Rick Kassiotis, Select Board Clerk

Documents either distributed to the Select Board before the meeting in a packet or at the meeting:
e Agenda: February 20, 2024

e Warrant #2417 & FP 33

e Minutes: February 6, 2024 os/es

e Email J. Smith re Food Pantry donation 2.6.24

s letter of Recommendation from Police Chief Sampson 2.16.14

e Tenant Letter Application 1.2.24

e MemoJ. Sultzbach to Select Board re Charter Review Committee 2.20.24

e ATM May 14, 2024 Warrant

e Industrial Communications contract w/ town of Middleton 11.9.23

e Email from S. Clifford to Town Administrator re Fuller Meadow School re-roofing scope 2.12.24
¢ Memo from J. Sultzbach to Select Board re Fuller Meadow Roof Authorization 2.20.24

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
February 20, 2024 Page 4/4



Town of Middleton
Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts
01949-2253
978-777-3617

www.middletonma.gov

TOWN OF MIDDLETON
TALENT BANK APPLICATION

The Seject Board maintains a Talent Bank of names of citizens of Middleton willing to serve on boards,
commissions and committees. Names in this file are avallable for use by all Town Departments.

Name: | 47000 fzogjjfﬁ. Telephone:
pdoresz: | 3 Be |l /e Gl phone: g -P2R-DEFZ
Emell Address: __J2/nirdle 22020 yenzon. et

Ocoupation: (00 at ﬂ/m_eﬂ&?" Are

Background Experence: W bis oy 1n Mimes Sevinas piiuid v, Sepuiesard
S"u‘u"; j.S ) K dadly / 10 eng e 'Wé

e _-'_.__h_.l___-'ii..a.:_‘ &) Lide LTS Y RS

- Eldalss ot 1Y & ST Ao o ely. me, )
o ALY Wiaseiind on o g Commitises involved in the. following. el

(Hemchedcaumatapply.ﬂmBoamenoouragesynutoattuohamantmsumelfavailable.)

I '
[ Ly

A !é Board of Hestth Recreation Commiasion
] {_ Council an Aging Historical Commission
Finance Commilttee 1 { Planning Board
Zoning Board of Appeals Industrial Commercial Development Review Committee
~ Conservation Commission Zoning Bylaw Review Committee
4 \ {_ Cultural Council Other:_
Cther: Other:
Amount of Time Available: 187 Ubs deity 4 .00 dio ¥
Are you available year round for commilitee mestings? Yes v No___
If not, when are you avallable?
Winter Spring Summer Autumn

Are there any Boards or Committees In which you are parficularly interested?

| &

Loune,,

r

.l" P, _‘x(.l_ o X J a5
7 Signature Dste
PimsubnﬂtanmmnaesbheTmMnhbhbstﬂeevhﬂ:emaﬂknadmmmwaemanm

deb.matonsy@middistonma.gov
Revised 8/28/23

11



JOANNE PLOURDE
13 Belleview Ave
Middleton, MA 01949
jplourde23@verizon.yict
978-828-7883

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

7/2012~-present

11/01-72012

3/9%-11/01

11/92-3/99

9/88 — 11702

EDUCATION

REFERENCE

Northeast Arc, Denvers, Ma

Chief Operating Officer

Suppo:tsNotdnenstArc’smissionbypmvidingmmdvalevel administrative management of all service
lines, budget development and manitoring, administrative function including Quality Assurance,
Oompnmoe,oﬁeMamgmnengFacnhies,mdlnfomaﬁmTaghmbgy.Actsunmemher of the
ExmﬁwmdSaﬁorLeadmhipTemsmdhmpmsihhﬁnexemﬁwmdmhrlwelphming,
decision-meking and implementation of policies and initiatives. Lead development end implementation of
Strategic Plan.

Northeast Axe, Danvers, MA ¢
Division Director
j mrwmeeingﬂ:eadministaﬁommmgmmmdopmaﬁmofﬂwdaqumﬁm

WmMMMAmMMmDayHnﬁﬁmmmﬂysﬂm andd
Residential Services. Management and clinical supervision of program steff. Develop and monitor agency
budgets. Assist with Coordination of lnman resources, recruiting, hiring, and training. Ensure compliance
wiﬁnppﬂmbhlhmﬂngmdmgﬂmwmdmds,UCPpoﬁniapmoedmmdnﬁQnﬂmmﬁmm
standards (CARF). Agency’s Human Rights Coordinator. Chairperson of Massachusetts Day Habilitation
Coulition January 1957 through Jenuary 1999,

United Cercbral Palsy Association of MetroBoston Inc., Watertown, MA

students, and volunteers. Designed and implemented agency policies and procedures. Monitor compliance

Suffolk University, Bostan, MA

MPA (Masters of Public Administration)
University of Lowell, Lowell MA.
Bachelor of Arts, Psychology

Fumnished upon request.



Peb Mahone; B

Fronm: noreply@civicplus.com

Sent: Monday, July 24, 2023 5:08 PM

To: Jackie Bresnahan; Deb Mahoney

Subject: Online Form Submittal: Appointment Form 2023 (New and Reappointment)

[CAUTION:] This message was sent from outside of the Town of Middleton. Please do not olick links or open aftachments
unless you recognize the source of this emall and know the content is safe.

Appointment Form 2023 (New and Reappointment)

First Name Peter

Last Name Graziani

Board/Commission/Committee  Industrial and Commercial Design Review Committes
Response I would fike to be newly appointed

Emall Address Grazianipeter@gmail.com

Best Contact Phone Number 61758011114

Address 221 N Main St

City Middieton

State MA

Zip Code 01949

Resume Upload for New Fleld not complefed.
Applicants

Electronic Signature | agree.

Agreement

Electronic Signature Peter Graziani

Email not displaying comectiy?



OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR
Town of Middleton
Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949-2253
978-777-3617
www.middletonma.gov

February 28, 2024

To: Select Board; Town Administrator
From: Jackie Bresnahan, Assistant Town Administrator/HR Director
RE: Planning Director Screening Committee

In lieu of the departure of our current Town Planner, I would like to recommend the following make-up of a
Planning Director Screening Committee. The chosen members would need to have availability in late March
to review resumes and early April to interview candidates and make a recommendation to the Select Board.

Planning Director Screening Committee:

One (1) Select Board representative

One (1) Planning Board representative (of their choosing)
One (1) Zoning Board representative (of their choosing)
Town Administrator

Assistant Town Administrator/HR Director

This make up will ensure the needs of the Select Board, Planning Board, and Zoning Board are represented.

I would also request that the Select Board appoint their representative, as well as the Town Administrator
and ATA/HR Director, tonight with a term ending “upon the position being filled.”

In regards to timeline, the position will be posted on the Town website as well as mma.org and with various
professional associations on Friday, March 1*. We will actively recruit throughout March and begin resume
review at the end of the month.

Thanks in advance to the staff in 195 N. Main who will work with us to ensure there is no disruption in the
activities of the Planning and Zoning Boards. I would like to thank Katrina O’Leary for her 10 years of
service to the Town of Middleton.



TOWN OF MIDDLETON

OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR
48 South Main Street, Middleton, MA 01949

Telephone (978) 777-3617
justin.sultzbach@middletonma.gov

TO: Select Board

FROM: Justin Sultzbach, Town Administrator
DATE: March 5%, 2024

RE: Locust St Engineering

Board Members,

Before you tonight is Mr. Scott Cameron of the Morin-Cameron Group, Inc. Mr. Morin and his firm
has extensive experience in professional civil engineering, land surveying and environmental
consulting. Given that we are in the early planning stages of the town-owned Locust Street parcel, and
based on feedback from the Select Board at recent meetings, we are looking to kick off a high level
conversation about the potential of this community asset.

Given the parcel’s close proximity to 195, it’s geographic location at the edge of town away from Rt
114 traffic, and the current demand for residential development in the Commonwealth, we feel this is a
highly desirable parcel. With this in mind, and given recent “runaway” development we have seen in
surrounding areas, it would be in the Town of Middleton’s best interest to develop a citizen-driven
RFP process that would put in place certain guardrails to ensure whichever development that may go
there is reflective of the needs and wants of the community.

Mr. Cameron can help us shape that conversation on an early level by helping our team better
understand what could (and could not) be possible on this parcel. Once this is established we can begin
work on preparing and collecting data on the parcel that will assist us as we go through the RFP
development process for the disposition of the Locust Street parcel.




ﬁ,m :x Loa

Vgl

\//.J/G - &: nm:

,.lx /

H ,45
f/.,\ mr om/ /
A %

.,c~,,/




Unofficial Property Record Card - Middleton, MA

General Property Data
Parce} ID 0020-0000-0027 Z Aceount Number 200125
Prior Parcel ID -~
Property Owner MIDDLETON TOWN OF Property Location LOCUST ST
MEMORIAL HALL Property Use Mun Vacant
Malling Address 48 SOUTH MAIN ST Most Recent Sale Date 9/28/2001
Legal Reference 17704-498
City MIDDLETON Grantor WEBBER,ALAN E,
Mailing State MA Zip 01849 Sale Price 1,750,000
ParcelZoning R1B Land Area 17.410 acres
Current Property Assessment
Card 1 Valve Bullding Value 0 XimFeroaeso Land Value 632,600 Total Value 632,500
Building Description
Building Style Foundation Type Flooring Type N/A
# of Living Units 0 Frame Type Basament Floor N/A
Year Bullt N/A Roof Structure Heating Typs N/A
Bullding Grade Roof Cover Heating Fuel N/A
Building Condition N/A Slding Alr Conditloning 0%
Finished Area (SF) N/A interior Walls N/A # of Bsmt Garages 0
Number Rooms 0 % of Bedrooms 0 # of Full Baths 0
#o0f3/4Baths 0 #of 1/2 Baths 0 # of Other Fixturas 0
.

Legal Description

Narrative Description of Property
This property contains 17.410 acres of land malnly classified as Mun Vacant with a(n) style building, bullt about N/A , having exterior and roof cover,

with 0 uans]I [} MIBI' 0 badrnomist. 0 bath‘sl. 0 hatf bathlsz.

Property images

No Sketch No Map No Preture
Available Available Available

Disclalimer: This information is befleved to be correct but Is sublect to change and is not warrantead.



Unofficial Property Record Card - Middieton, MA

General Property Data
Pareel ID 6014-0000-0052 Account Number
Prior Parcel iD ~
Property Owner MIDDLETON YOWN OF Property Location LOCUST ST
MEMORIAL HALL Property Use Mun Vacant
Malling Address 48 SOUTH MAIN §T Most Recent Sale Date
Legal Reference
City MIDDLETON Grantor
Mailing State MA Zip 01849 Sale Price 0
ParcelZoning R1B Land Area 0.749 acres
Current Property Assessment
Card 1Value Building Value 0 Xtra Features Land Value 321,800 Total Value 321,800
Building Description
Bullding Style Foundation Type Flaoring Type N/A
# of Living Units 0 Frame Type Basement Floor N/A
Year Built N/A Roof Structure Heating Type N/A
Building Grade Roof Caver Heating Fuel N/A
Bullding Condition N/A Siding Air Conditioning 0%
Finished Area (SF) N/A Interior Walls NJA # of Bsmt Garages 0
Number Rooms 0 # of Badrooms 0 # of Full Baths 0
# of 3/4 Baths 0 # of 1/2 Baths 0 # of Other Fixtures 0

Legal Description
Narrative Description of Property

This property contains 0.749 acres of land mainly classified as Mun Vacant with a{n) style building, bullt about N/A , having exterior and roof cover, with

[|] ungsh 0 rcomis]. 0 bedmm[sz. 0 bath(s), 0 half bath(s).

Property Images

No Sketch No Map No Picture
Available Available Avatlable

Disclaimer: This Information is believed to be carrect but is subject to change and is not warranteed.



Unofficial Property Record Card - Middleton, MA

General Property Data
Parce! ID 0014-0000-0003 2 Account Number 16270K
Prior Parcel ID -~
Property Owner MIDDLETON TOWN OF Property Location LOCUST ST
MEMORIAL HALL Property Use Mun Vacant
Mailing Address 48 SOUTH MAIN ST Most Recent Sale Date 9/268/2001
Legal Reforence 17704-408
City MIDDLETON Grantor ALAN E WEBBER
Malling State MA Zip 01949 Sale Price 1,750,000
ParcelZoning R1B Land Area 0115 acres
Current Property Assessment
Card1Value Bullding Value 0 Xtra Features Land Value 23,900 Total Value 23,900
Building Description
Bullding Style Foundation Type Flooring Type N/A
# of Living Units 0 Frame Type Basement Floor N/A
Year Buiit N/A Roof Structure Heating Type N/A
Building Grade Roof Cover Heating Fuel N/A
Building Condition N/A Siding Alr Conditioning 0%
Finlzhed Area (SF) N/A interior Walls N/A # of Bsmt Garages 0
Number Rooms 0 # of Bedrooms 0 # of Full Baths 0
# of 3/4 Baths 0 # of 1/2 Baths 0 # of Other Fixtures 0

Legal Description

Narrative Description of Property

Thls property contains 0,115 acres of land mainly classified as Mun Vacant with a(n) style building, built about N/A , having exterior and roof cover, with

"“'Hsl Oroom[sl 4] bedroomis] ] bathisl 0 haif bath‘s!

Property Images

No Sketch No Map No Picture
Available Available Available

Disclaimer: This information is befieved to be correct but Is subject to change and is not warranteed.



3/1/24, 11:14 AM Company Profile | The Morin-Cameron Group, Inc.

HOME ABOUT SERVICES PROJECTS CARI

Y : INQUI

The Morin-Cameron Group, Inc. is a leading provider of professional civil engineering, land surveying and environmental consulting services in New England.
Morin-Cameron Group, Inc. was originally founded in 1978 by Thomas E. Neve as a civil engineering, land surveying and land use planning firm, In 1988, Partr
John M. Morin joined the firm and worked up through the ranks, assuming ownership in 2004. In 2012, Partner Scott P. Cameron joined the firm and collectiv
rebranded the company to The Morin-Cameron Group, Inc. In 2018, MCG acquired Christiansen & Sergi, Inc. based in Haverhill, Massachusetts.

MCG serves residential and commercial owners, municipalities, architects, attorneys, developers, contractors and other professionals in the land developmen
industry. Our team of innovative and proactive civil engineers, land surveyors and professionals are committed to providing our Clients with unrivaled service

MCG has offices in Danvers and Haverhill, Massachusetts.

About

TSR

* The MCG Way
> Company Profile
> Owners

> Giving Back

About Services Contact Information

https:/morincameron.com/about/company-profile/ 1/2



3/1/24, 11:14 AM

Our gualified staff has assisted Residential,
Commercial, Institutional and Recreational Clients
since 1978. We provide Professional Civil Engineering,
Land Surveying, Environmental Consulting and Land
Use services in the land development sector.

We look forward to hearing from you before you
begin your next project.

Company Profile | The Morin-Cameron Group, Inc.

Civil engineering
Land surveying
Environmental consuiting

Land use planning

Danvers Location
66 EIm Street
Danvers, MA 01923
P: 978-777-8586

Haverhill Location
25 Kenoza Avenue
Haverhill, MA 01830
P; 978-373-0310

Email
info@morincameron.com

Copyright 2019 - The Morin-Cameron Group, Inc. Alf Rights Reserved.

https://morincameron.com/about/company-profile/

2/2



3/1/24, 11:12 AM Scott Cameron, P.E. - The Morin-Cameron Group, Inc.

HOME ABOUT SERVICES PROJECTS CARI
TwMorin-Cameran

INQUI

https://morincameron.com/profiles/scott/ 1/4



3/1/24, 11:12 AM Scott Cameron, P.E. - The Morin-Cameron Group, Inc.

https://morincameron.com/profiles/scott/ 2/4



3/1/24, 11:12AM Scott Cameron, P.E. - The Morin-Cameron Group, Inc.

SCOTT CAMERON, P.E.

Welcome to our website and thank you for taking the time to learn about our company. I'd like to share with you a short narrative about my upbringing and
background.

I grew up in Southern New Hampshire and Northeastern Massachusetts. | spent my childhood mucking through swamps, woods and fields, in search of the
next rock to flip over in anticipation of what was living beneath. When | was 8, my family moved to a new subdivision in a small town in the Merrimack Vaile:
The road was still under construction when we moved in to the house my father built. My natural curiosity for how things work found me shadowing the sit
contractor, asking questions and deing my best not to annoy them. In hindsight, they had the patience of saints. Around the same time, my father and
extended family were expanding their restaurant. | remember walking through the bare steel frame of the building, watching the brick layers mortaring CM
walls, electricians, plumbers, carpenters...it was an exciting experience for a kid to be part of. It was these early run-ins with construction and the wild that
planted the seeds that would eventually grow into my professional career.

Later in my youth, I learned the principles of hard work, commitment and leadership through Boy Scouts of America, sports and work. [ earned the rank of
Eagle Scout, a proud accomplishment which | still display on the wall in my office. | played varsity cross-country and track and field through all of high schot
Being the child of a restaurant family, | also worked at my family's restaurant starting in middle-school. The restaurant instilled on me the customer service
values of the hospitality industry. These childhood experiences shaped my core of values of hard work, integrity, courtesy and workmanship.

In 1999, | was accepted into Northeastern University's College of Engineering. My childhood interests in the environment and construction led me to the civ
engineering program, in which I excelled. Northeastern is a co-operative work/study curriculum so in between class semesters, | worked in the industry. |
worked at Modern Continental Enterprise Group, Parsons-Brinkerhoff and SEA Consultants (now Kleinfelder) during this time.

Following graduation in 2004, | accepted a job at McKenzie Engineering Group where | worked out of their Saugus office. It was a small company and within
short time, | was given an opportunity to take a leadership role for the company. It wasn't long before the owner and | moved the office to Danvers where |
began growing a network of clients. | must tip my hat to Brad McKenzie for his mentorship and patience during my time at his company. It was during this 1
that | was immersed into the world of the public permitting process. | attended meetings with planning boards, conservation commissions and town official
Worked with attorneys, developers, architects and other professionals on strategy, scope and constant thinking on your feet. The public arena is where | re
found my niche in the industry and doors started opening for me. It was September 29, 2008, the start of the economic recession and a day that Il never
forget, that started me on a path to ownership.

During the economic recession of 2008-2010, everyone in our industry was looking for work. Development had ground to a halt, and | was not alone in
pursuing every lead | could find. | found a lot of small house addition jobs during this time and many of them needed septic system inspections. So, | startet
small company specializing in septic system inspections, Cameron Site Inspection, Inc. that | could work on weekends. It filled an economic need for me anc
family while we waited out the recession, It also taught me the basics of owning a business. It wasn't long before | convinced myself that owning an enginee
company was the next logical step in my career.

The concept of a partnership between John and myself began in late 2011 over a coffee and orange juice. It wasn't iong before we formed The Morin-Camer
Group. The company has grown considerably since it's rebranding. | owe this success to our collective commitment to excellence, and the outstanding staf
that surrounds us and makes this happen. | am very excited about what the future holds for our Company.

~Scott P. Cameron, P.E., Principal

Services Contact Information

Civil engineering Danvers Location
66 Elm Street
Danvers, MA 01923
Environmental consulting P: 978-777-8586

Land surveying

Land use planning Haverhill Location
25 Kenoza Avenue

https://morincameron.com/profiles/scott/ 3/4



3/1/24, 11:12 AM Scott Cameron, P.E. - The Morin-Cameron Group, Inc.

About Haverhill, MA 01830

P: 978-373-0310
Our qualified staff has assisted Residential,
Commercial, Institutional and Recreational Clients
since 1978. We provide Professional Civil Engineering,
Land Surveying, Environmental Consulting and Land
Use services in the land development sector.

Email
info@morincameron.com

We look forward to hearing from you before you
begin your next project.

Copyright 2019 - The Morin-Cameron Group, inc. All Rights Reserved.

https://morincameron.com/profiles/scott/ 4/4



— (REDACTERS 7~
Town of Middleton a'sy
Memorial Hall .

48 South Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts
01949-2253
978-777-3617
www.middletonma.gov

One Day Liquor License Application

License Fee Payable to the Town of Middleton

ALL QUESTIONS MUST BE ANSWERED AND A TELEPHONE NUMBER PROVIDED

Business Name Winter Hill Brewing Co (Indignant Brewing Co LLC)

Business Address 329 Broadway, Somerville, MA 02145

Social Security Number/FID Number.

Applicant Information

Individual’s Name Breck Bailey

Home Address -

Mobile Number203-249-2830

Is the Applicant a United States Citizen? Yes L[1No

Driver’s License Number & State

E-Mail Address breck@winterhillbrewing.com

Date of Event Weekends from 4/20/24 - 6/30/24 Time from Neon o 8P

Location of Licensed Activity The Lot on South Main (145 South Main Street, Middleton, MA)

Beer Garden at The Lot on South Main

Purpose of Event -
Will there be entertainment? O ves No
Is the event being catered? Cves No

Name of Caterer EXISting Food Vendors on Premises (Salty's, Taco Libre, etc.)

Page 2 of 4
Revised 08/09/2023



Town of Middleton
Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts
01949-2253
978-777-3617
www.middletonma.gov

Number of People Attending Adults '00 Children 20

Type of License (select one)

] One-Day All-Alcoholic (only available for non-profit purposes) One-Day Beer & Wine
[ Charitable Wine Pouring [ Charitable Wine Auction

Is the alcohol being donated? [ Yes XlNo

Where is the liquor being purchased from? Winter Hill Brewing (Farmer Brewer) & Hogs Head Wine Co.

Are they a licensed wholesaler? [x]ves [ No

Who will be serving the alcohol? Winter Hill Brewing Co, Employees

Does the server have liquor liability insurance? Yes CIno

Is the event held by, or held for the benefit of, a business or non-profit group?

Business [X]Yes [ ~o Non-Profit L[] Yes 1 No
Will there be a cash bar? [X]Yes [ No

Is there an entrance fee or donation required? [ yes Ino
Is the event open to the general public? [x]ves E No

**Special One Day Licensees must purchase Alcoholic Beverages from a licensed supplier.
Special Licensee cannot purchase alcoholic beverages from a Package Store and cannot accept
donations of alcoholic beverages from anyone.**

Page 3 of 4
Revised 08/09/2023



Town of Middleton
Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts
01949-2253
078-777-3617
www.middletonma.gov

Liability Disclaimer for Special One Day License

By exercising the privileges of this license in serving persons with alcoholic beverages, the licensee is
potentially exposed to significant liability for injuries and damages to persons served or to others who
are injured or damaged by the persons served. Your acceptance and exercise of this license will be
deemed to be acknowledgement that you are aware of this potential liability. You are encouraged to
discuss the risks associated with exercising your privileges of the license and the precautions
appropriate to avoid injuries, damage and liability to others with your legal advisor. The Town of
Middleton, and the Select Board as Local Licensing Authority, shall not be liable to the licensee or
others if injury or damage shall result from the exgreisepf the license.

/912024
- Date

Signature of Applicant_/

Page 4 of 4

Revised 08/09/2023



N INDIBRE-01 __ HIGMI
ACCORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE | AT

| THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES |
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

| REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. |
Iif SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statementon |
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

I PRODUCER l cﬁﬁLACT Hh _— - —
445 thain Sroat o Sorvioe LLC MW, e (781) 933-3100 W8 nox(781) 933-9048 |
Woburn, MA 01801 I E_mg;'ssiinsurgnce.services@saIemﬂve.cm ) |
| INSURER!S| AFFORDING COVERAGE T
= m INSURER A : Hanover ) - (22292
INSURED wsursr 8 : Allmerica Financial Benefits Ins _{41 840 ‘
Indignant Brewing Co LLC | msurer ¢ : Capitol Specialty Insurance Corp. —
328 Broadway nsurer 0 : Wesco Insurance Company
| Somerville, MA 02145
INSURERE : S — — i
- _ wsueerF: ]
_COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

[ THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS |
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMVS.,

MSR|  veeor msurance AR Poucymumeer | FOHGYERE [ OLCYEXF | s
A | X [ commerciaL GeNERAL LIRBILITY EACH CCCURRENGE P 1,000,000
| cLams-Mane [ X | cccuR BNH674216 TH2023 | THi2028 | BAMAETORENTED 100,000
— | MED EXP iAny one persan) $ 10_’000
, _ _ ! | PERSONAL 8 ADVINIURY | § 1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: ‘ | | GENERAL AGGREGATE | ) 3,000,000!
_ | pouov| |§EG [ Joc | | PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | 3 3,000,000
| omer: ‘ LIQUOR LIAB 5 2,000,000
B | ayromoniLe LasiLTy N = i@ﬁ?&"&%ﬂmﬁ LT 1,000,000
!gmﬁm S AWNH674207 | THI2023 | 7MI2024 | BoDLY IMJURY Persenon |
LR [ X ‘AUTOS | I BODILY INJURY (Per accident, | §
X W owy | X et | RPCEYpAace T
- 1 1 ——— ; | A S ——
C X umereuaime | X | occur | EACH OCCURRENCE I's 2,000,000
| EXcessuiag _ CLAIMS-MADE | lxszaosoos'r 7M/2023  7Hi2024 | AGGREGATE R 21000,000
| |pEo| | RETENTIONS | Ll | $
D |WORKERS COMPENSATION ' X[ER | o |
AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY A lsTAtutE | [ER | o
YN
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE WWC3689123 111512024 | 1M612025 | ., oy nccopent s 1,000,000
(Rhanciatory tn RH) — 0o - 1,000,000
EL DISEASE - iz s s
If yes, describe under ' PN 1,000,000
__ |DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below ! - = ] ! E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LMIT | 5 000,000
A |Liquor Liability [ZBNH674216 | 71172023 | T7Mi2024 |Per Occurrence 1,000,000
A |Property

ZBNH674218 7112023 | 71{2024 |BPP 275,000

DESCRIPTION QF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS { VEHICLES (ACORD 104, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Beer Garden Service on Saturday's and Sunday's ffrom Aprif 20, 2024 through June 50, 2024,

The town of Middleton is included as additional insured per written contract or agreement

_CERTIFICATE HOLDER ' _CANCELLATION B -
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

T
Beer Garden at the Lot on South Main, Middieton A’éﬁoﬁt’,‘ﬁlﬁ‘,‘g ﬁ#u Qﬁgo,ﬂﬁﬁﬂfggg,s{g,g?e WEL BE DELIVERED IN

48 S Malin Street

Middieton, MA 01949
| ‘ AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

[ | W W
ACORD 25 (2016/03) )  ©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Department of Industrial Accidents
Office of Investigations

Lafayette City Center
2 Avenue de Lafayette, Boston, MA 02111-1750
www.mass.gov/dia
Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit: General Businesses
Applicant Information Please Print Legibly

Business/QOrganization Name;_lndiggant Brewing Co LLC (d/b/_a Winter Hill Brewing Co)

Address: 328 Broadway

City/State/Zip: Somerville, MA 02145 ~ Phone#:MA - -
Are you an employer? Check the appropriate box: Business Type (required):
I.[® 1am aemployer with 25 employees (full and/ 5. [] Retail
or part-time).* 6. [B] Restaurant/Bar/Eating Establishment
2.L Yam a sole proprietor or partnership and have no 7. [] Office and/or Sales (incl. real estate, auto, etc.)

employees working for me in any capacity.
[No workers’ comp. insurance required] 8. [] Non-profit
3.[_] We are a corporation and its officers have exercised 9. [T} Entertainment
their right of exemption per c. 152, §1(4), and we have 10.[ ] Manufacturing
no employees. [No workers’ comp. insurance required]}**
4.[] We are a non-profit organization, staffed by volunteers, 11.L] Health Care
with no employees. [No workers’ comp. insurance req.] 12.[] Other _ .

*Any applicant that checks box #1 must also fill out the section below showing their workers’ compensation policy information.
**If the corporate officers have exempted themselves, but the corporation has other employees, a workers’ compensation policy is required and such an
organization should check box #1.

I am an employer that is providing workers’ compensation insurance for my employees. Below is the policy information.
Insurance Company Name: Salem Five Insurance Services

Insurer’s Address: 445 Main Street

City/State/Zip: YWoburn, MA 01801

Policy # or Self-ins. Lic. # WWC3689123 B Expiration Date; 1/15/2025
Attach a copy of the workers’ compensation policy declaration page (showing the policy number and expiration date).

Failure to secure coverage as required under § 25A of MGL c. 152 can lead to the imposition of criminal penalties of a fine up
to $1,500.00 and/or one-year imprisonment, as well as civil penalties in the form of a STOP WORK ORDER and a fine of up to
$250.00 a day against the violator. Be advised that a copy of this statement may be forwarded to the Office of Investigations of
the DIA for insurance coverage verification.

I do hereby certify, % nalties of perjury that the information provided above is true and correct.

21912024

Sicnature: Date:

Phone #: 20%249—2890

Official use only. Do not write in this area, to be completed by city or town official.

City or Town: o __ Permit/License #
Issuing Authority (check one):

1] JBoard of Health 2] Building Department 3] City/Town Clerk 4.|:|Licensing Board
5[] Selectmen’s Office 6.[ ]JOther

Contact Person: - Phone #:

www.mass.gov/dia



H hﬁgﬂoﬁwﬂn
uﬁsuzﬁg

z __ vwwg_.gﬁ .
hrﬁ. mm —.uunx.:a _

e a
_,_mﬁ..:._.ﬁ g&éa&p




9207/90/90 semdxy

aairdirydiao

GE1Z0 VIN. goﬁmﬁm
wwmmm w&%m mm

sudey geuuey _ﬂ.”.‘

80S858820000-NO % aysognIad

£20T/20/90: .Ea%w._”_.u.,,

asnuazg-ug LV WEW

P—

AR T -



0& aunr - gz 1Mdy - Aopuns pup Aopinivs

S,

VI S0 ! i %' - n‘nh\r\hﬂ;. -
S ot Mz » b < ”..J.-}. - 2 ‘. o«

UIb|y Y3NoS UO 307 3y }D UIPIDL) 133y




7 abey

o€ 6¢

Y4 &4

91 ST

6 8

[4 T aunf
9z 74

61 111

1 TT

S 17 Aepy
8¢ Ll

12 (174 ady

Aepung Aepinjeg
uonesado jo sajeq

(Awjiqey| Jonbij /19 wgg) painsut Aing .

saako|dwa
PayilEd SdiL -2~ Aq pajjels 99 pinom JuaA] =

P33 Sd|1 8Je woym
Jo ||e ‘saakojdwis Auedwor Buimalg |jIH Ja3uIp Aq
pabeuew aqg jjim saipaide abelanaq dijoyode Iy «

slopuaa pooj} 107 bupsixe Aq
JU9A3 JnoyBnoiyl A|sNONUIIUOD PBAISS 9 O} POOH  «

sbuuayo sijoyod|e
UOU pue aulm 18ag apnul 01 ad1AIes abesansg =

M3IAIBAQ suonjeladQ
dg — UOON =
(0€ aunr — oz |4dy) sAepuns pue Aepinjes :sojeq =

sonsiboq

107 9Y | }e udpJec) 199y



- INiod
/4 SIHLONDA3S
7 TOHOTY ON

abeubig a

199.1S J9)SaIUIAA 00L — UOI}ed0T]




v abed

(1s3tpuaapd L) 33UDpUGLID PaIOUNIS3)
(+00S) s34 BN 3pasdwios
(+000°L) 421522n0]5) JOGIDH a3 Y304 A
(+000°1) uapip9 idag moy fjquiassy
(+00¥) Aupd ¥0)g 24pnbs UDWID A
(+00¢t) J4Dd 31mAINIS DAOPIODSP A
(+009) p4DA 2i0nbs Jlog 4
(+009) pibA aionbs sinpg A
(+000°2) JoAIs24 J1sngy 10307 LosOg A |4
2ouaradxg ,uapive 433y, aARDIUISIIdaY

"J)e ‘saijed

uonenpeib ‘syuans buisiespuny

'sjuane a1esodiod 'sbuippap
BPN|DUI SJUDAD DYSHO deAld —

(€202 - 2e0e W +5p~
pajesado) sieak g 10} susp.ieb

183q 3jiqow buneiado uasq aneH -

s1as|RIpUN}
pUB S|BAIIS3) JISNW 'SJUIAD
ajeiodiod ‘sbuippam ‘suapieb
woosde sjjiaBwog ¥ 1939 2ijqnd sapnjpul acuauadxa
: abelaAaq pue pooj aUSPYO =

PIOJpaly Wl uapIeD Joag ,PIRA 8YL, A

lauulp
pue younj ‘1sepjeaiq buialas wool
dey uosiad +Qg| Sapnppul sesIBId =

(Huued

Bulnod Jaueq Japun pasusdiy)

9102 j0 |udy aduls Aempeoug gze

1k ssauisng bunialed pue jueine}sal
3DIALSS [|N} e pojesado sey DGHM =

- Buimaug [|IH 193UIMA INOQY



Town of Middleton

Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleten, Massachusetts
01949-2253
978-774-3589
www.middletonma.gov

TOWN OF MIDDLETON
TALENT BANK APPLICATION

The Select Board maintains a Tatent Bank of namas of citizens of Middleton willing to serve on boards,
this file are avaitable for use by all Town Departments.

commissions ar_id mmmittges. Names in
Names _)HL///) /,@[3@( Telephone: ? 7/5>~ 36@ 'S‘B/g{

of LI 7¢ Ceq/NE Bus Telephone:

Address:

Emaimudress;dq lebel@ wi SN2 (v oy 4
ocoupetion _C A W7 ™ At ()i cériey WIE E Z M

Background Experience:  (, ) ST 2L T SJU/? &S S q (v sp

L) PAST Wiy thae Recy, 0 Cantaakt - @ Ay~
f'am interested in serving on Town Boards and Committees involved in the following areas: S+ Y@V‘/ >
ncourages you {o attach a recent resume if available.)

{Please check all that apply. The Board e

Recreation Commission

Board of Health
Council on Aging Historical Commission
Finance Committee Planning Board
Board of Appeals Industrial Commercial Development Review Committee
Conservation Commission Zoning Bylaw Review Committee
Cuitural Council Other;
Cther. Other.
Amount of Time Available: Z
Are you available year round for oonwnittee meetings? Yes V No
ifnot, when are you available? S
| b33 3 __Winter ____Spring Summer Autumn
‘l ' f‘»_i\re'&jn,a'erany Boards or Cammltﬁaeé_inm you are particularly interested?
Iministrator's Office via the mailing address above or via email at

han@middietonma.gov




Town of Middleton
Memorial Hall
48 Sounth Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts
01949-2253
978-777-3617

www.middletonma,gov

TOWN OF MIDDLETON
TALENT BANK APPLICATION

The Select Board maintains a Talent Bank of names of citizens of Middleton willing to serve on boards,
commissions and committees. Names in this file are available for use by all Town Departments.

Name: __J ane | 10“ (de Telephone: _ _
Address: ;ﬁe T/e Cell phone: & _CZ_E'?'_K\’
Email Adaress: )2 pyirde 220 Yerzon. Nt

occaten:_C-00 at Wythens] Are.

Beciground Expertencer (vl o 1 Mmas Seviias piuid ) e Soruies are
'g & ¢ 1@»-"#‘5 -1D o e 0 4] 7 . Al L ;-"’"_ 12 £ O b"lJ Loy

; I S8 & 5 -
. A 4 , ] - : &5
' Eldidss w1 tly ¢ HHugl s TQmidy. (Rsume. ath
g%ﬁnl%ﬁé&m?%%s&d@m;m&ﬁmg inti1 faﬂowiggaleas: i
(HeasechedcaﬂﬂtatapplyTheBoardanoouragasyoutoaﬁachamemlasumalfavaihb!a.)

v 1

A 1/ Board of Heslth Recrestion Commission
5y ﬁ Council on Aging Historical Commission
Finance Commlites 1 fPlanning 8oard
Zoning Board of Appeals industrial Commercial Development Review Committes
~ Conservation Commission Zoning Bylaw Review Commitiee
4 I£ Cutiural Councll Other: - .
QOther: Othar: o
Amount of Time Available:  /\10 4 INUES gidtv 4.00 415t rEM e
Are you available year round for commiitee mestings? Yes vl No___
If not, when are you avallabla?
Winter Spring Summer______ Autumn
Are there any Boards or Commiftees In which you are particularly interested?
c)- a” 4 4 LN ..’_";_,_ — = —— e —
Horrn [bpncl LIS LS
?gg;mmr;manmmmh Town Administrator's Offics via th manuaagmahabm via
own ce -] 88 emafiat:
d:b.mhomy@nudlebmna.gw =

Revised 8/28/23
11



JOANNE PLOURDE
13 Belleview Ave
Middleton, MA 01949
jplourde23@verizon.net
978-828.7883

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

7/2012-present

11401-72012

3/99-11M01

11/92-3/9%

9/88 - 11592

EDUCATION

REFERENCE

Northeast Arc, Danvers, Ma

Chief Operating Officer
SuppomNotmumAm’smhﬁmbyptwwhgmmﬁvemladmhMaﬁwmngmmofanmhe
lines, budget development snd monitoring, administrative function including Quality Assurance,
Compliance, Office Management, Facilities, and Information Technology. Acts as a member of the
Exmﬁvemd&mimLeadmhipTemsmdismpmsihhﬁuexemﬂvemdmimlewlpmhg,
decision-msking end implementation of policies and initiatives. Lead development mmd implementstion of
Strategic Plan.

Northeast Are, Danvers, MA ‘

Division Dirert
Respmﬂ:hforwuwehgﬁeadmhMommmgmmdopmmofﬁednymmm
Mmmﬁwmswmmnwﬁmmdmmmﬁmmmmﬁcﬁnw
supervision of Program Directors, Develop and monitor agency budgets and service contracts. Ensure
compliance with applicable licensing and regulatory standards, Ensure compliznce with national
accreditation (CARF) Member of senior management teant. Actively participate in agency strategic
planning, policy development and expension.

North Shore ARC, Heritage Industries, Demvers, MA

service contracts. Ensure compliance with applicable licensing and regulatory standards. Ensure
complisnce with national accreditation (CARF). Active participant in agency strategic management t=am.
United Cerebrel Palsy Association of MetroBostan Inc., Watertown, MA.

HALEOCIALE Cior far SINSTRIn JCIYICES

Rﬂpmsla fnrﬂxe administration, management, and operation of UCP programs including

Perzonal Care Attendant Program, Day Hehilitation, Pamily Support, and

(
Coalition January 1997 through Jemmary 1999,
United Cescbral Palsy Association of MetroBoston Inc., Watertoem, MA

.Day Habilitatlon Direcior

Responsible for the daily operations of the Day Habilitation Program. Developed and maunaged individual
service plans and therapeutic treatment plans. Hire, train and supervise professional, paraprofessional staff,
stadents, and volunteers. Designed and implemented agency policies and procedures, Manitor complismee

Suffolk University, Boston, MA

MPA (Msters of Public Administration)
University of Lowell, Lowell MA.
Bachelor of Asts, Psychology

Furnished npon request.



: 40R Merrimac Street, Suite 201 W
« I n n e S Newburyport, MA 0195%

MEMORANDUM

To Katrina O’Leary, Town Planner, Town of Middleton

From Emily Keys Innes, AICP, LEED AP ND

Date February 8, 2023

Project 23122 —Zoning Bylaw Update

Subject Draft Zoning — Version 8

Cc: Mage Pate, Research Analyst

This memorandum and its accompanying attachments provide the draft text of three
zoning articles for discussion. These three articles are the ones identified by the
Planning Board for the Spring 2024 Annual town Meeting.

e Article A: Two-family Dwellings (p. 2)
e Article B: Accessory Dwelling Units (p. 4)
e Article C: MBTA Communities Multifamily Overlay District. (p. 9)

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton REVIEW DRAFT 1
Prepared by Innes Associates



Article A: Allow Two-Family Dwellings

On petition of the Middleton Planning Board to see if the Town will vote to
amend the Middleton Zoning Bylaw by removing Section 7.2 “Conversion of
single-family dwelling in R2 District” and replacing with a new Section 7.2
“Standards for Two-Family Dwelling,” modifying the Table of Use
Regulations, modifying the Table of Dimensional Requirements, and that
non-substantive changes to the numbering of this bylaw be permitted in
order that it be in compliance with the numbering format of the Code of
Middleton:

7.2 Standards for Two-Family Dwelling
Two-family dwellings are allowed as-of-right in any Residential District.
7.2.1 General Requirements for all Two-Family Dwellings

1. ATwo-Family Dwelling may be created by:

a. Conversion of part of an existing single-family dwelling, including new or
existing additions, into a second dwelling unit;

b. Constructing a new Two-family Dwelling structure.

2. Lot arearequirements shall be in conformance with the Table of Dimensional
Requirements.

3. Sufficient parking shall be provided in accordance with the Table of Minimum
Requirements in Section 5.1.

4. The methods of waste disposal must satisfy Board of Health requirements.

5. Driveways and curb cuts must be shared between the two units. A special
permit from the Planning Board is required for separate driveways and curb
cuts.

7.2.3 General Requirements for a Two-Family Dwelling Structure

1. Garage doors shall not comprise more than 40% of the linear length of the
same architectural plane of the elevation facing the front yard.

Modify the Table of Use Regulations as follows:

Table of Use Regulations

Use o . Districts
R-l1a | R-lb [RA|R2 | B | M-1 | IH

B. Residential
1. Single-family detached dwelling Y Y Y Y N N

| 2

N

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton
Prepared by Innes Associates



2. Two-family dwelling (See Section | PBY | P8 | N | P8 | N | N | N
7.2) Y | Y| Y
S-Comversionatsinglefamily £B PB | N | PB | N N N
torminadwelling |
farmily-dwalling {See Section Z.2)
3. 4 Multifamily dwelling; N N N | PB| N N N
. ¢ existing sinmle-farmil
L valling ifarnilvdwell
| (See Section 7.1) I
4, 5- Flexible development {See N PB |PB| N N N N
| Section 7.3)
5. 6 Rooming or boarding house Y Y Y N N N N
with not more than 2 boarders. |

Modify the Table of Dimensional Requirements as follows:

Table of Use Dimensional Requirements

Districts B
Requirement R-1a R-1b RA R-2 |
Minimum Area 20,000 for a 40,000 for a 2 acres for a 20,000 for a single
(square feet) single-family, single-family, single-family, 4 family, 40,000 for a two-
40,000 for a 80,000 for a acres for a two- family, See Section 7.1
two-family two-family family for Multi-family
Districts
Requirement 3 B M-1 IH
| Minimum Area (square feet) 40,000 80,000 160,000 |

Explanation: This article would repiace the existing Section 7.2, which allows the
conversion of Single-Family Dwellings in the R-2 District to homes with more than one
unit by Special Permit, only if in conformance with Section 7.1 which requires 20,000
SF per unit. Currently, two-family dwellings are also allowed by Special Permit in the
R-1a and R-1b districts if the lots have twice the required lot area for a single-family
dwelling.

The new Section 7.2 would allow Two-Family Dwellings in any residential district,
either as conversions of Single-Family Homes or as new construction, as long as the
lot is twice the current minimum lot area of the residential district in which the
proposed Two-Family is located.

The Two-Family Dwelling unit would be allowed as-of-right, which means a building
permit would be required. A special permit from the Planning Board is required for
separate driveways and curb cuts.

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 3
Prepared by Innes Associates



All dimensional standards in the relevant district would need to be met. Septic
systems may be shared or separate, must be sized appropriately, and must follow the
Board of Health’s regulations.

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 4
Prepared by Innes Associates



On petition of the Middleton Planning Board to see if the Town will vote to
amend the Middleton Zoning Bylaw by adding Section 7.5 “Accessory Dwelling
Units,” modifying Section 3.1, Table of Use Regulations, Section 3.2,
Accessory Uses & Structures, modifying Section 10. “Definitions,” and that
non-substantive changes to the numbering of this bylaw be permitted in
order that it be in compliance with the numbering format of the Code of
Middleton:

Article B: Allow Accessory Dwelling Units
Section 7.5 Accessory Dwelling Units
7.5.1 Purpose and Intent. The intent of permitting accessory dwelling units is to:

1. Provide homeowners with a means of obtaining rental income,
companionship, security, and services, thereby enabling them to stay more
comfortably in homes and neighborhoods they might otherwise be forced
to leave.

2. Add moderately priced rental units to the housing stock to meet the needs of
smaller households and make housing units available to moderate income
households who might otherwise have difficulty finding housing.

3. Develop housing units in single-family neighborhoods that are appropriate
for households of various sizes.

4. Provide housing units for persons with disabilities.

5. Encourage a more economic and energy-efficient use of the Town's housing
supply while maintaining the appearance and character of the Town's
traditional residential neighborhoods.

6. Protect stability, property values, and the residential character of a
neighborhood.

7.5.2 Ownership.

An Accessory Dwelling Unit shall not be owned separately than the Principal Dwelling
with which the Accessory Dwelling Unit is associated. A Building with an Accessory
Dwelling Unit may not be divided into condominiums, even if owned by the same
person or entity.

7.5.3 General Requirements

1. The Building Commissioner may issue a Building Permit authorizing the
installation and use of an attached Accessory Dwelling Unit within an existing
or new owner-occupied, single-family dwelling only when the following
conditions are met:

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 5
Prepared by Innes Associates



a. The unit shall be a complete, separate housekeeping unit containing
both kitchen and bath and otherwise meet the requirements of the
definition of “Accessory Dwelling Unit” in Section 1A of chapter 40A
of the General Laws and Section 10 of these bylaws.

b. There shall be no more than one Accessory Dwelling Unit on a lot.
Only a Single-Family Dwelling is eligible to have an Accessory
Dwelling Unit.

c. The owner(s) of the residence in which the Accessory Dwelling Unit
is created shall continue to occupy at least one of the dwelling units
as their primary residence. The ADU Property Owner may not lease
the Owner Unit for any duration during periods when the ADU
Property Owner is not residing in the Owner Unit. For the purposes
of this section, the "owner" shall be one or more individuals who hold
title directly or indirectly to the dwelling and for whom the dwelling
is the primary residence.

d. Once an Accessory Dwelling Unit has been added to a single-family
residence or lot, the accessory dwelling unit shall never be enlarged
beyond the nine hundred (300} square feet allowed by statute or this
bylaw.

e. To encourage the development of housing units for individuals with
disabilities and persons with limited mobility, the Planning Board may
allow reasonable deviation from the stated conditions where
necessary to install features that facilitate access and mobility for
disabled persons.

7.5.4 Physical Requirements

The Accessory Dwelling Unit shall:

1. Satisfy the requirements to be a Dwelling Unit as set forth in this Zoning
Bylaw, the State Building Code and the State Fire Code, the Wetlands
Protection Act, and applicable Town regulations, including having a separate
entrance sufficient to meet requirements for safe egress.

2. Remain subordinate in appearance to the Principal Dwelling.

3. The Accessory Dwelling Unit shall comply with all dimensional regulations for
single-family homes applicable to the lot on which it is located.

4. An Accessory Dwelling Unit shall have no more than two bedrooms and shall
not have more than nine hundred (900) square feet of floor area.

5. In addition to the parking spaces required in Section 5.1 for the principal
dwelling, a minimum of one additional off-street parking space shall be

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton %

Prepared by Innes Associates



provided for the Accessory Dwelling Unit. The Planning Board may issue a
special permit to modify or waive this parking requirement.

Prior to issuance of a permit, a floor plan shall be submitted to the Building
Commissioner showing the proposed interior and exterior changes to the
building.

7.5.5 Special Requirements for Detached Accessory Dwelling Units

1.

All newly constructed detached Accessory Dwelling Units or those which are
constructed as part of other accessory structures on a property, including
carriage houses, barns, or detached garages, will require a Special Permit to
be issued by the Planning Board as Special Permit Granting Authority in
accordance with Section 9.4 under these bylaws and only when the following
conditions are met:

a. All conditions under 7.5.3 and 7.5.4, above.

b. Any structure containing a detached Accessory Dwelling Unit may be
located only in the Rear Yard and/or Side Yard of the principal
dwelling and must conform to the rear and side yard setback
requirements.

c. Exterior staircases shall not be visible from a public way and shall be
designed to complement the Principal Dwelling.

2. No more than five (5) special permits for new Detached Accessory Dwelling Units

shall be issued by the Planning Board in a single calendar year.

7.5.6 Administration and Enforcement

1.

it shall be the duty of the Building Commissioner to administer and enforce
the provisions of this Bylaw in accordance with Section 9.0 of these bylaws.

Approval for an Accessory Dwelling Unit requires that the owner shall occupy
one of the dwelling units. The zoning approval and the notarized affidavit
required in a. and c. below shall be recorded in the Southern Essex District
Registry of Deeds or Land Court, as appropriate, in the chain of titfe to the
property, with documentation of the recording provided to the Building
Commissioner, prior to the occupancy of the accessory dwelling unit.

a. Prior to issuance of a permit, the owner(s} shall send a notarized
affidavit stating that the owner will occupy one of the dwelling units
on the premises as the owner’s primary residence, except for bona
fide temporary absences.

b. The Accessory Dwelling Unit shall not be legally separated or sold
apart from the single-family dwelling.

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 7

Prepared by Innes Associates



c. When a structure, which has received a permit for an Accessory
Dwelling Unit is sold, the new owner(s), if they wish to continue to
exercise the Permit, shall, within thirty (30) days of the sale, submit a
notarized affidavit to the Building Commissioner stating that they will
occupy one of the dwelling units on the premises as their primary
residence, except for bona fide temporary absences. If such notice is
not received within thirty (30) days, the structure shall be
nonconforming under this bylaw and the new owner will have to
submit a new application for the Accessory Dwelling Unit under the
provisions of this bylaw and bring the Accessory Dwelling Unit up to
date with the Building Code in effect at the time of the new
application béfore the new application can be approved.

The minimum leasing term for the unit that is not occupied by the ADU
Property Owner shall be the greater of 30 days or such other period governing
short term rentals which may be set forth from time to time in the Town
Bylaws. The Accessory Dwelling Unit may not be leased more than once in
any 30-day period.

If the Accessory Dwelling Unit has been built or is being operated in violation
of the provisions of this Section the Building Commissioner may, in addition
to other remedies, order the removal of any one or more of the provisions
that create a separate dwelling unit, such as living, sleeping, cooking, and
eating.

7.5.7 Effective Date and Compliance of Existing Non-Conforming Units

1. This Section 7.5 shall apply to all building permits issued after the effective

date of this bylaw or September 1, 2024, whichever is later, for construction
of new Accessory Dwelling Units.

All Single-Family Dwellings prior to the date of adoption of this Section 7.5
that contain a self-contained housing unit, inclusive of sleeping, cooking and
sanitary facilities on the same lot as a principal dwelling are illegal and shall
be brought into compliance with this Section 7.5 or discontinued. If building
permits for such work are issued prior to December 31, 2025, and associated
construction completed by December 31, 2026, owners shall not be subject
to penalties otherwise applicable to correction of non-conforming structures.

Zning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton

Prepared by Innes Associates

@ ‘



Modify the Table of Use Regulations as follows:

Table of Use Regulations

Use Districts

la | 1b |RA | R2 | B | M-1 IH
B. Residential |

6. Attached Accessory Dwelling Y Y Y Y N N N
_Unit (See Section 7.5) _ B
7. Detached Accessory Dwelling PB | PB | PB| PB | N N N

Unit (See Section 7.5) l

Modify Section 10 Definitions as follows:
Under DWELLING:

ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT — A self-contained housing unit, inclusive of
sleeping, cooking and sanitary facilities on the same lot as a principal dwelling,
subject to otherwise applicable dimensional and parking requirements, that: (i)
maintains a separate entrance, either directly from the outside or through an
entry hall or corridor shared with the principal dwelling sufficient to meet the
requirements of the state building code for safe egress; {ii) is not larger in floor
area than 1/2 the floor area of the principal dwelling or 900 square feet,
whichever is smaller; and (iii) is subject to such additional restrictions as may be
imposed by a municipality, including but not limited to additional size
restrictions, owner-occupancy requirements and restrictions or prohibitions on
short-term rental of accessory dwelling units, and does not include use of trailers
or mobile homes, however mounted.

Modify Section 3.2 Accessory Uses & Structures

Under Section 3.2.1 Add:

7. Accessory Dwelling Units that comply with Section 7.5

Under Section 3.2.3, Add the bold-underlined text below to the following excerpt:

Accessory building. An accessory building including a detached garage, but not
including an Accessory Dwelling Unit under Section 7.5, located on any lot shall not
be located closer than 25 feet to the street on which the lot is located and shall not
be any closer to any side or rear lot line than the greater of the height of such
accessory building above the ground or 20 feet. No accessory building shall be located
closer than 20 feet to any dwelling or main structure on a lot unless both structures
conform to regulations relative to fire safety.

Eoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 9
Prepared by Innes Associates



Explanation: This article would add a new Section 7.5, which allows a homeowner to
add an Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) in an existing or new single-family dwelling as-
of-right and in a detached structure by Special Permit from the Planning Board. ADUs
are important additions to a community’s housing strategy, allowing for multi-
generational living, private space for caretakers to enable seniors to stay in their
homes longer, or rental income to support the homeowner. Accessory Dwelling Units
may be allowed by right within an existing Single-Family Dwelling, in an attached
building, such as a garage or newly built extension, or by special permit as a detached
building. ADUs are limited in size to 900 sq. ft. and a maximum of two bedrooms. They
may not be sold separately from the Single-Family Dwelling and any rental must be
for more than 30 days. This triggers public health laws related to tenants and prevents
the use from Being considered a transient use, which would require additional
building code considerations.

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 10
Prepared by Innes Associates



On petition of the Middleton Planning Board to see if the Town will vote to
amend the Middleton Zoning Bylaw and map by adding Section 8.8 “Allow
Multifamily Dwellings,”, modify Section 2.2 Overlay Districts, modify Section
9.5 “Site Plan Review,” modify Section 10. “Definitions,” and that non-
substantive changes to the numbering of this bylaw be permitted in order
that it be in compliance with the numbering format of the Code of
Middleton:

Article C: Allow Multifamily Dwellings

Modify Section 2.2 Overlay Districts, as follows:

Add “MBTA Communities Multi-family Overlay District (MCMOD)” to the list of
Overlay Districts.

Add new Section 8.8 MBTA Communities Multifamily Overlay District

8.8.1.

1.

8.8.2.

Purpose

The purpose of the MBTA Communities Multi-family Overlay District
(MCMOD) is to allow multi-family housing as of right in accordance with
Section 3A of the Zoning Act (Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A). This
zoning provides for as of right multi-family housing to accomplish the
following purposes:

a. Encourage the production of a variety of housing sizes and typologies
to provide equal access to new housing throughout the community
for people with a variety of needs and income levels;

b. Preserve open space in the community by locating new housing
within or adjacent to existing developed areas and infrastructure.

c. Increase the municipal tax base through private investment in new
residential developments.

Establishment and Applicability

Overlay District. This MCMOD is an overlay district that is superimposed over
the underlying zoning district (s) and is shown on the Zoning Map.

Applicability of MCMOD. An applicant may develop multi-family housing
located within the MCMOD in accordance with the provisions of this Section
8.8.

Underlying Zoning. The MCMOD is an overlay district superimposed on
underlying zoning districts. The regulations for use, dimensions, and all other
provisions of this Zoning Bylaw governing the respective underlying zoning

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton "

Prepared by Innes Associates



district(s) shall remain in full force, except for uses allowed as of right as
specified under this section 8.8, Uses that are not identified in this Section
8.8 are governed by the requirements of the underlying zoning district(s).

OPTION 1

4. Llocation of Sub-districts. The MCMOD contains the following sub-districts,

all of which are shown on the MCMOD Boundary Map:
a. Northeast District A. Map/Parcel #: 21/12 and 21/14.
b. Northeast District B. Map/Parcel #: 21/12A
c. Southwest District A. Map/Parcel #: 30/2

d. Southwest District B. Map/Parcel #: 30/1

OPTION 2

5.

Location. The MCMOD contains the following parcels: Map 21, Parcels 4, 5,
12, 12A, 14, 15,16

8.8.3. Definitions.

For purposes of this Section 8.8, the following definitions shall apply.

1.

AFFORDABLE UNIT. A multi-family housing unit that is subject to a use
restriction recorded in its chain of title limiting the sale price or rent or

limiting occupancy to an individual or household of a specified income, or
both.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING. Housing that contains Affordable Units as defined
by this Section 8.8.

AREA MEDIAN INCOME (AMI). The median family income for the
metropolitan statistical region that includes the Town] of Middleton, as
defined by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS. Provisions of Section 8.8.7 General
Development Standards made applicable to projects within the MCMOD.

SITE PLAN REVIEW AUTHORITY. The Board of Appeals for the Town of
Middleton.

SUBSIDIZED HOUSING INVENTORY (SHI). A list of qualified Affordable
Housing Units maintained by EOHLC used to measure a community's stock of
low-or moderate-income housing for the purposes of M.G.L. Chapter 40B, the
Comprehensive Permit Law.

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 12

Prepared by Innes Associates



8.4. Permitted Uses

1. Uses Permitted As of Right. The following uses are permitted as of right
within the MCMOD.

a. Multi-family housing, as defined in Section 10. This use may included
one or more of the following building types defined in Section 10 of
the Bylaw: Dupiex Dwelling Unit (minimum of two such units per lot),
Multifamily Dwelling, Garden Apartment, Mid-Rise Apartment, or
High-Rise Apartment.

2. Accessory Uses. The following uses are considered accessory as of right to
any of the permitted uses in Section 8.4.1.

a. Parking, including surface parking and parking within a structure such
as an above ground or underground parking garage or other building
on the same lot as the principal use.

8.5. Dimensional Standards

1. Table of Dimensional Requirements. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in this Zoning, the dimensional requirements applicable in the
MCMOD are as follows:

OPTION 1
- - Subdistricts
. . Northeast Southwest

Dimensional = T
Standard _A | B A B
Minimum Area 160,000 160,000 80,000 80,000
(square feet)
Minimum frontage 400 400 150 150
(feet)
Minimum Lot Width 400 400 150 150
(feet)
Minimum Front 50 50 50 50

| Setback (feet)
Minimum Side Yard 50 50 25 25
(feet)
Minimum Rear Yard | 50 50 25 25
(feet)
Lot coverage by 35 35 35 35
buildings (%) l |

Zo?ﬂng Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton B 13

Prepared by Innes Associates



Minimum Open 50 50 50 50

Space (%)

Minimum Building 75 35 35 | 35
Height (feet)

Maximum Building 7 3 3 3

Height (stories)

. Lot Area per Dwelling None 4,000 4,000 5,000
Unit (square feet)

OPTION 2
Dimensional Standard
Minimum Area (square feet) 160,006 B
_ Minimum frontage (feet) 400
- Minimum Lot Width (feet) 400
Minimum Front Setback (feet) 50
Minimum Side Yard (feet) 50
Minimum Rear Yard {feet) 50
Lot coverage by buildings (%) 35
Minimum Open Space (%) - 50
Minimum Building Height (feet) 35 .
Maximum Building Height (stories) 3 '
Lot Area per Dwelling Unit (square feet) 2,500

2. Multi-Building Lots. In the MCMOD, lots may have more than one principal
building.

3. Exceptions. The limitation on height of buildings shall not apply to chimneys,
ventilators, towers, silos, spires, or other ornamental features of buildings,
which features are in no way used for living purposes and do not constitute
more than 25% of the ground floor area of the building.

4. Exceptions: Renewable Energy Installations. The Site Plan Review Authority
may waive the height and setbacks in Section 8.8.5 Dimensional Standards to
accommodate the installation of solar photovoltaic, solar thermal, living, and
other eco-roofs, energy storage, and air-source heat pump equipment. Such
installations shall not create a significant detriment to abutters in terms of

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 14
Prepared by Innes Associates



noise or shadow and must be appropriately integrated into the architecture
of the building and the layout of the site. The installations shall not provide
additional habitable space within the development.

8.8.6. Off-Street Parking

1.

All requirements of Section 5.1 in this Bylaw apply except that 1.5 spaces per
dwelling unit are required for a Residential Dwelling Unit within the MCMOD.

Parking spaces shall be permitted either as surface parking or within garages
or other structures.

One bicycle parking space shall be provided for each unit.

For a multi-family dwelling development of 25 units or more, covered bicycle
parking spaces shall be provided for twenty-five percent of the required
spaces.

8.8.7. General Development Standards

Prepared by Innes Associates

1. Development standards in the MCMOD are applicable to all multi-family
development in a MCMOD Overlay District. These standards are components
of the MCMOD Site Plan Review process in Section 8.8.9. Site Plan Review.

2. Site Design.

a. Connections. Sidewalks shall provide direct connections among
building entrances, the public sidewalk {if applicable), bicycle
storage, and parking.

b. Vehicular access. Where feasible, curb cuts shall be minimized, and
shared driveways encouraged.

¢. Open Space Land. Open Space Land as defined in Section 10 of this
Bylaw shall be contiguous undeveloped land and, where feasible,
connected to Open Space Land in adjacent lots.

d. Screening for Parking. Surface parking adjacent to a public sidewalk
shall be screened by a landscaped buffer of sufficient width to allow
the healthy establishment of trees, shrubs, and perennials, but no
less than 6 (six) feet in width. The buffer may include a fence or wall
of no more than three feet in height unless there is a significant grade
change between the parking and the sidewalk.

e. Parking Materials. The parking surface may be concrete, asphalt,
decomposed granite, bricks, or pavers, including pervious materials
but not including grass or soil not contained within a paver or other
structure.

.ZonEg Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton o o 15



f. Plantings. Plantings shall include species that are native or adapted
to the region. Plants on the Massachusetts Prohibited Plant List, as
may be amended, shall be prohibited.

g. Lighting. Light levels shall meet or exceed the minimum design
guidelines defined by the Hluminating Engineering Society of North
America (IESNA) and shall provide illumination necessary for safety
and convenience while preventing glare and overspill onto adjoining
properties and reducing the amount of skyglow.

h. Mechanicals. Mechanical equipment at ground level shall be
screened by a combination of fencing and plantings. Rooftop
mechanical equipment shall be screened if visible from a public right-
of-way.

i. Dumpsters. Dumpsters shall be screened by a combination of fencing
and plantings. Where possible, dumpsters or other trash and
recycling collection points shall be located within the building.

j. Stormwater Management. Strategies that demonstrate compliance
of the construction activities and the proposed project with the most
current versions of the Massachusetts Department of Environmental
Protection Stormwater Management Standards, the Massachusetts
Stormwater Handbook, Massachusetts Erosion Sediment and Control
Guidelines, and, if applicable, additional requirements under the
Town of Middleton’s Stormwater Permit, and an Operations and
Management Plan for both the construction activities and ongoing
post-construction maintenance and reporting requirements.

k. Noise. The proposed development shall not unreasonably interfere
with the reasonable use and enjoyment of property within the Town
as a result of the generation of noise. Practices and systems shall
reduce noise pollution in order to preserve and enhance the natural
and aesthetic qualities of the Town; preserve property values; and
preserve neighborhood character.

3. Buildings: General.

a. Position relative to principal street. The primary building shall have
its principal fagade and entrance facing the principal street or
principal common driveway. See also Section 8.8.7. Buildings: Corner
Lots.

b. Entries. Where feasible, entries shall be clearly defined and linked to
a paved pedestrian network that includes the public sidewalk.

4. Buildings: Multiple buildings on a lot.

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 6
Prepared by Innes Associates



a.

Parking and circulation on the site shall be organized so as to reduce
the amount of impervious surface. Where possible, parking and
loading areas shall be connected to minimize curb cuts onto public
rights-of-way.

A paved pedestrian network shall connect parking to the entries to
all buildings and the buildings to each other.

The orientation of multiple buildings on a lot should reinforce the
relationships among the buildings. All building facade(s) shall be
treated with the same care and attention in terms of entries,
fenestration, and materials.

The building(s) adjacent to the public street shall have a pedestrian
entry facing the public street.

5. Buildings: Shared Outdoor Space. Multi-family housing shall have common
outdoor space that all residents can access. Such space may be located in any
combination of ground floor, courtyard, rooftop, or terrace. All outdoor space
shall count towards the project’s minimum Open Space requirement, as
defined in Section 8.8.5.

6. Buildings: Corner Lots. A building on a corner lot shall indicate a primary
entrance either along one of the street-facing fagades or on the primary
corner as an entrance serving both streets.

a.

Such entries shall be connected by a paved surface to the public
sidewalk, if applicable.

All fagades visible from a public right-of-way shall be treated with
similar care and attention in terms of entries, fenestration, and
materials.

Fire exits serving more than one story shall not be located on either
of the street-facing facades.

7. Buildings: Principal Facade and Parking. Parking shall be subordinate in
design and location to the principal building facade.

a.

Surface parking. Surface parking shall be located to the rear or side
of the principal building. Parking shall not be located in the setback
between the building and any lot line adjacent to the public right-of-
way.

Integrated garages. The principal pedestrian entry into the building
shall be more prominent in design and placement than the vehicular
entry into the garage.

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton
Prepared by Innes Associates

17



c. Parking structures. Building(s) dedicated to structured parking on the
same lot as one or more multi-family buildings or mixed-use
development shall be subordinate in design and placement to the
multi-family or mixed-use building(s) on the lot.

8. Waivers. Upon the request of the Applicant and subject to compliance with
the Compliance Guidelines, the Site Plan Review Authority may waive the
requirements of this Section 8.8.7. General Development Standards, in the
interests of general safety, design flexibility, and overall project quality, and
upon a finding of consistency of such variation with the overall purpose and
objectives of the MCMOD.

8.8.8 Affordability Requirements.
1. Purpose.

a. Promote the public health, safety, and weifare by encouraging a
diversity of housing opportunities for people of different income
levels;

b. Provide for a full range of housing choices for households of all
incomes, ages, and sizes;

¢. Increase the production of affordable housing units to meet existing
and anticipated housing needs; and

d. Work to overcome economic segregation allowing Middleton to be a
community of opportunity in which low and moderate-income
households have the opportunity to advance economically.

2. Applicability. This requirement is applicable to all residential developments
with 10 or more dwelling units, whether new construction, substantial
rehabilitation, expansion, reconstruction, or residential conversion
(Applicable Projects). No project may be divided or phased to avoid the
requirements of this section.

3. Affordability requirements.

a. Subsidized Housing Inventory. All units affordable to households
earning 80% or less of AMI created in the MCMOD under this section
must be eligible for listing on EOHLC’s Subsidized Housing Inventory.

4. Provision of Affordable Housing. In Applicable Projects, not fewer than ten
percent (10%) of housing units constructed shall be Affordable Housing Units.
For the purpose of calculating the number of units of Affordable Housing
required within a development project, a fractional unit shall be rounded up
to the next whole number. The Affordable Units shall be available to
households earning income up to eighty percent (80%) of the AMIL.

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton _ 18
Prepared by Innes Associates



5. Fee in Lieu.

As an alternative to the requirements of paragraph (3) of this section,
and at the sole discretion and majority vote of the Select Board upon
a recommendation of the Affordable Housing Trust, the developer or
property owner shall contribute a fee to the Municipality's Affordable
Housing Trust Fund in lieu of providing all or a portion of the required
Affordable Housing Units within the proposed development.
Approval of a payment in lieu of affordability from the Select Boards
and a recommendation from the Affordable Housing Trust must be
obtained prior to application and submitted with the initial
Application for Site Plan Review.

The payment shall be an amount equal to the required number of
affordable housing units multiplied by the median price of a
Middleton market-rate home comparable in type, size, and number
of bedrooms proposed for the market rate units reported for a
minimum of three (3) home sales over a period of twelve (12) months
prior to the date of application submission, if available. Median home
cost utilized in the formula must be approved by the Middleton
Affordable Housing Trust, or designee. The applicant shall calculate
the proposed sum based on an appraisal of the comparable home
sales and submit documentation of the relevant data source(s) as
part of the application.

Any payment to the Affordable Housing Trust Fund as an in lieu
contribution for Affordable Housing Units shall be made as follows:
at least 50 percent of the total owed prior to the issuance of a
building permit; and the remaining total owed prior to the issuance
of an occupancy permit.

6. Development Standards. Affordable Units shall be;

a.

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton

Prepared by Innes Associates

Integrated with the rest of the development and shall be compatible
in design, appearance, construction, and quality of exterior and
interior materials with the other units and/or lots;

Dispersed throughout the development;

Located such that the units have equal access to shared amenities,
including light and air, and utilities {including any bicycle storage
and/or Electric Vehicle charging stations) within the development;

Located such that the units have equal avoidance of any potential
nuisances as [market-rate units] within the development;

Distributed proportionately among unit sizes; and




f. Distributed proportionately across each phase of a phased
development.

g. Occupancy permits may be issued for market-rate units prior to the
end of construction of the entire development provided that
occupancy permits for Affordable Units are issued simultaneously on
a pro rata basis.

7. Administration.

a. The Building Commissioner shall be responsible for administering and
enforcing the requirements in this section.

8.8.9. Site Plan Review

1. Applicability. Site Plan Review under Section 9.5 of the Middleton zoning
bylaw is required for all projects within the MCMOD. An application for Site
Plan Review shall be reviewed by the Zoning Board of Appeals for consistency
with the purpose and intent of Sections 8.8.4 through 8.8.8 and Section
9.5.11

2. Submission Requirements. As part of any application for Site Plan Review for
a project within the MCMOD submitted under Sections 8.8.5 through 8.8.8,
the Applicant must meet the requirements of this section and Section 9.5 Site
Plan Review of this Bylaw and the requirements contained in the Zoning
Board of Appeals Rules.

3. Site Plan Approval. Site Plan approval for uses listed in Section 8.8.4
Permitted Uses shall be granted upon determination by the Zoning Board of
Appeals that the following conditions have been satisfied. The Zoning Board
of Appeals may impose reasonable conditions, at the expense of the
applicant, to ensure that these conditions have been satisfied.

a. The Applicant has submitted the required fees and information as set
forth in the Town of Middleton’s requirements for a Building Permit
and Site Plan Review; and

b. The project as described in the application meets the development
standards set forth in Section 8.8.7. General Development Standards
and the objectives under Section 9.5.11.

4. Project Phasing. An Applicant may propose, in a Site Plan Review submission,
that a project be developed in phases subject to the approval of the Site Plan
Review Authority, provided that the submission shows the full buildout of the
project and all associated impacts as of the completion of the final phase.
However, no project may be phased solely to avoid the provisions of Section
8.8.8 Affordability Requirements.

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 20
Prepared by Innes Associates



1. Severability.

If any provision of this Section 8.8 is found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remainder of Section 8.8 shall not be affected but shall remain in full
force. The invalidity of any provision of this Section 8.8 shall not affect the validity of
the remainder of the Town of Middleton’s Zoning Bylaw.

Modify Section 9.5 Site Plan Review, as follows
Add the following to Section 9.5.2 Applicability.
9.5.2. Applicability. The following types of activities and uses require site,plan review
by the Zoning Board of Appeals:
1. Garden apartments in a residence district;

2. Any new buildings or structures in a Business District, Light Industrial District,
Institutional Overlay District, or Interstate Highway Business District;

3. An addition to or alteration of an existing building for commercial use;

4. Multifamily Dwellings under Section 8.8; or

Modify Section 10.0 Definitions, as follows:
Add the following definitions to Section 10.0 Definitions:

APPLICANT — A person, business, or organization that applies for a building permit,
Site Plan Review, or Special Permit.

AS-OF-RIGHT — Development that may proceed under a zoning ordinance or by-law
without the need for a special permit, variance, zoning amendment, waiver, or other
discretionary zoning approval.

PARKING, SURFACE — One or more parking spaces without a built structure above
the space.

PARKING, STRUCTURED — A structure in which vehicle parking is accommodated on
multiple stories; a vehicle parking area that is underneath all or part of any story of a
structure; or a vehicle parking area that is not underneath a structure, but is entirely
covered, and has a parking surface at least eight feet below grade. Structured Parking
does not include surface parking or carports, including solar carports.

Replace the existing definition of Multifamily Dwelling with the following new
definition:

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 21
Prepared by Innes Associates



MULTIFAMILY DWELLING— A building with 3 or mare residential dwelling units or 2
or more buildings on the same lot with more than 1 residential dwelling unit in each
building.

Replace the existing definition of Dwelling Unit with the following new definition:

RESIDENTIAL DWELLING UNIT— A single unit providing complete, independent living
facilities for one or more persons, including permanent provisions for living, sleeping,
eating, cooking. and sanitation.

Explanation: This article would bring the Town of Middleton into compliance with
Section 3A of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A. This law is commonly
referred to as the MBTA Communities Act. Middleton qualifies as an Adjacent
Community as defined by the Compliance Guidelines, which were distributed by the
Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities (EOHLC) to provide guidance on
how to comply with the law. In addition to the Compliance Guidelines, EOHLC
provided two major tools to help communities comply: the Compliance Model and
the Sample Zoning.

As an Adjacent Community, the Town of Middleton must pass zoning that is compliant
with the law by December 31, 2024. The Town is required to zone a minimum of 50
acres for multifamily housing as-of-right. The calculated unit capacity of the zoning
district must be a minimum of 750 units. The Compliance Model is used to determine
whether the Town of Middleton meets the minimum requirements and to test zoning
options to bring the Town into compliance. The Town held a public forum in
November 2023 to discuss geographic options for potential districts and plans to hold
a second public forum on January 30, 2024 to discuss the results of that meeting and
how those results were incorporated into this draft article. The draft is based on the
Sample Zoning provided by EOHLC and modified to fit Middleton’s existing Zoning
Bylaw.

The Town already allows multifamily by Special Permit in the R-2 District. The
requirement for a special permit means that this district does not comply with Section
3A’s requirement for as-of-right multifamily zoning. Participants at the November
forum also indicated their concern with adding more units, and more traffic, along
Route 114 which is where the R-2 districts are located.

The following section is the Explanation for Option 1.

An example of a new multifamily development in Middleton is the Blu Haven
Residences at the corner of Routes 114 and 62. This multifamily development has 45
townhouses. However, this development is age-restricted; such development does
not comply with Section 3A, which requires that the buildings be suitable for families.
With 45 units on 23.62 acres, the existing density of 1.91 units per acre is far below
the 15 dwelling units per acre required by Section 3A.

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 22
Prepared by Innes Associates



Ferncroft Towers is another example of existing multifamily development in
Middleton. This is a condominium tower and is in one of the few areas within town
that has access to sewer, rather than septic (through the South Essex Sewer District).
Ferncroft Towers is currently zoned IH or Interstate Highway Business. According to
ResiDensity, this site has 177 units on 4.87 acres, and thus a density of 36.37 units per
acre; well over the required minimum density of 15 units per acre.

Adjacent to that parcel are the two towers of Ironwood on the Green, with 204 units
on 7.82 acres and a density of 26.10 units per acre. The third parcel along Village Road
is the Villas at Ironwood on the Green, with 30 townhouses on 5.84 acres for a total
density of 5.13 units per acre. While this is below the required density, the three
parcels together have an existing 411 units on 18.53 acres for a total density of just
over 22 units per acre.

Rezoning this area to meet or slightly exceed the existing units would meet over half
of the Town’s minimum required unit capacity and is over the required density.
However, the area does not meet the required geographic area of 50 acres.

Another possible area is the site known as the Bostik site, which is in the southwestern
corner of town. This site is currently zoned M1 for Light Industry, and there are two
parcels, one with 19.03 acres and the second with 37.099 acres.

Participants in the November workshop identified both these areas as suitable for
multifamily housing. For example, the Ironwood/Ferncroft area has easy access to
Route 1 and [-95 and access to sewer. This area is also within a 20-minute drive of
either the Hamilton-Wenham or the North Beverly commuter rail stations. The Bostik
area is an already developed site adjacent to the Independence Greenway and the
Ipswich River Reservoir. This site is about a fifteen-minute drive from the Reading
commuter rail platform.

The Town does not anticipate that the Bostik parcels will be available for residential
use in the near term. However, rezoning the larger site would allow the Town to meet
its geographic requirements and allowing for an appropriate level of residential use
would provide an incentive for a future developer to provide the needed
infrastructure for a residential development on that site. With the adjacent amenities,
a multifamily development could be attractive to future residents.

Option 1 in this article is designed to allow multifamily as of right in both places — the
existing three parcels for Ironwood/Ferncroft (the northeast subarea) and the two
Bostik parcels (the southwest subarea). The dimensional standards are designed to
preserve the existing unit capacity and density in the northeast subarea while
projecting sufficient capacity at the southwest subarea to make residential a viable
use if the current use changes.

Eoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 23
Prepared by Innes Associates



The following section is the Explanation for Option 2.

At the public meeting on January 30, 2024, some participants indicated a preference
for zoning the entire Interstate Highway Business (IH) district as the town’s
compliance multifamily district. Option 2 is an overlay district on all parcels in the |H
district. This would include the three parcels discussed earlier, the Ferncroft Country
Club, the portion of the Doubletree Danvers that is within Middleton, the office
building at 35 Village Road, the condominiums along Callaway Drive, and some
smaller pieces of undevelopable land. Of those sites, only the condominiums on
Calloway Drive have residential units now: 8 units on 3.98 acres for a total density of
2.01 units per acre.

It is possible that EOHLC might reject the Ferncroft Country Club as a developable
parcel as it does not have frontage on a street; it would have to be combined with a
parcel with sufficient frontage. All other parcels in the area appear to have the
minimum required frontage. Without the acreage provided by the Ferncroft Country
Club, this option is not compliant.

Eing Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton 24
Prepared by Innes Associates



Option 1

OPSFIELD

Northeast B

Northeast A

NORTH READING

,l" N,

re
!

o,
! “Yan_

™
4

DANVERS
Southwest A —>

“~~Southwest B
LYNNFIELD

PEABODY

Hydrography [:] Parcels
- _— e e 4 A
- innes 0 038 075 15 2.25 3 Mies N
Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton
Prepared by Innes Associates




Option 2

NORTH

ANDOVE

NORTH READING

LYNNFIELD

TOPSFIELD

DANVERS

. Buildings

nne
- "8

0 0.38 0.75

- Hydrography

l:l Parcels

Zoning Bylaw Update | Town of Middleton
Prepared by Innes Associates

2.25

3 Miles N

26



OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR
Town of Middleton
Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949-2253
978-777-3617
www.middletonma.gov

March 1, 2024

To: Select Board; Town Administrator

CC: Finance Committee; Solid Waste Advisory Committee

From: Jackie Bresnahan, Assistant Town Administrator/HR Director
RE: Transfer Station Sticker Fee Policy

The goal of the policy outlined below is to establish a financial policy for the Transfer Station Sticker Fees.
This policy is generated from the Solid Waste Advisory Committee’s recommended breakdown of what
costs should be expenditures covered by the tax rate and what expenditures should be covered by the sticker
fee revenue. I have worked to incorporate feedback from Operating Budget Saturday discussions as well.

At the time of annual appointments, we will include an extension of the Solid Waste Advisory Committee for
a one year and two year check in on the implementation of this policy and their other recommendations, as
discussed by the Select Board and Finance Committee.

Transfer Station Sticker Fee Policy
Revised March 1, 2024
Voted ----

The Town Administration shall annually prepare the Operating Budget for the Transfer Station
through the normal operating budget process as outlined in the Town’s Charter, Bylaws, and
Financial Policies. Prior to Operating Budget Saturday of any given year (or February 10" if the
Operating Budget Saturday is not held), Administration will utilize the current proposed Transfer
Station Budget and the “Transfer Station Costs and Sticker Price Calculation” workbook to identify
the Transfer Station Sticker Cost for the upcoming fiscal year. This report will be provided to the
Select Board and Finance Committee.

As outlined in the above-mentioned workbook, Trash Tipping Fees, Recycling Fees, and Truck
Fuel and Oil should be 100% covered by the sticker fee revenue. The Personnel, Utilities, and
Repairs should be fully funded by the tax rate. Regulatory work and maintenance of landfills will
not be included in this calculation in any way.

Additionally, the 2nd Trash Sticker (for a second vehicle) and the Recycling Only Sticker price
should be fixed at about 25% of the 1st Trash Sticker price. All prices were calculated and then
rounded to the nearest $5.00. If you adjust the ratio of the stickers sold, you will find combinations
where the 2nd Sticker and the Recycling Sticker prices are different (by $5), and that is a feature of
the calculation details and is not an error.

By March 15" of any given year, the Select Board, at a regularly scheduled public meeting, will
take up the action item for the following fiscal year’s Transfer Station Sticker Fees to allow time for
implementation into the final operating budget.



9EY'ELTS 00S‘TOE S 150D
aley xel S48 IV
0006 S|00Sy S|TT'Sk S | %€ %S¢ %6 00¢ siay21s apAday
F00S‘Tz S|oosy S| TUSY S |%L %ST %EC 00S SJ9oNS pug
000°0£2 $ | 00°08T $ | tv'08T S |%06 %00T %89 00ST S42d1s
anuans S e S0 olney dud | s1INs 9 P195 sa1)
o papuncy | parepates 150D % 11ey dd A0S % JsquinN ld
9EE'SLP S V09'CEVS 065'TLE §  EL5V0VS
%9 %19 %65 %79 SUibA
1aquiny utoAdaY fysel ] %20
SI4} J2A0D PJNOYS SIS 9€TTOE S| 9€C'TOE S | YOS'E9TS | 06L°6TT & | €££2'1STS J0 asodsip 01 150D
L7 0,
soqune %9¢€ %6¢€ %Iy %9¢ uonels %8¢
¢, 1 4 s / m m
SIY} J2A0D PINOYS saxe] 00T'ELTS 00T'€LT $ | OOT'69TS | 008'ZST S | OOE'LVTS Jajs5ued) € ALY 01 150D afelany
$334 |esodsiq SuipAay| - $| 0008 S| 000'8¢ $|T9L9E $|¥ZS'6T S| ETE'SE S |%00T %0 v jesodstg BuippAday
juawdinbs pue| . , . . i A . syoN13 404 10/1oN
SYaN1 10J SI|GRWINSUOT S| 000'SE S| 000°sE S |000'SE $|000ZE  $|000SE $ |%00T %0 d | 3 10/19nd
sa9g Suiddiy| - $|9cz'6Tr S| oce'eee S| EpLTETS | 992'89T § | 09698TS |%00T %0 v Jesodsiq ysedL
0000C $| - ’ i 000°€ 000° 9 9 wiswdinb3 Jleday "b3
$ | coo'0z < |0009T § T S | 000°0T S (%0 %00T d e15 JaJx [|e 01 suieday !
00Ty S| - S| 00Ty $|00Tv $|008€E S| 00EY $|%0 %00T 4| 9318 213dag 214139317 SN N SIVAIRS
343D “1dng "1ssy ‘ov1s | - ¢ | . . . o auuosIag 10/Ld/14 sagem
“3dns spnpul 30U $30q 000°677T 000°6%T ¢ | 000°6YTS | 000'9ET S | OOQ'EETS |%0 %001 q |
Xel 1218 T C-Ad
SJUBLIWO) Ad199png | Aq208png | M 198png | A4 3uaunD | rtsnothasd |llsnomasy [ RBs %Ml 3edixe Lo 1v/png [ERET]

UOIIE[ND[BY 3lid IS PUE SIS0D) UOREIS J3suBl)




UoSy2143 UYor 19e1U03 - SUOIISAEENS ‘SIUBLULLOI ‘SUOIISBND

"JO1J2 Ue 10U S| pue

S|ie1ap uolle|ndjed ay3 JO ainjeay e s| 1eyl pue ‘(S Aq) Jususyp ale saoud 1ayons
8ul2A33Y ay1 pue 133211 PUZ SY1 2J9YM SUOIBUIGUIOD PULY ||IM NOA ‘PlOS SIa)I11S
3Y1 jo ol1el 3yl isnfpe noA | '0p’SS 159483U SY1 01 PIPUNGCI USY) pUEe pale[ndjed
a19M s221ud ||y 2o1d 4332135 Ysed] 1ST Y3 JO %57 INOge Je paxi) aq pinoys

3014d J3X211S AJuQ Bui2Ad9Y DY) pue JaXINIS YSeJ] Puz syl 1Byl paloA JVMS UL
'21ey xe| ay1 uo Ajjn} aq pinoys (siiedsy

pue ‘salyliIn ‘[ouuosiad) arueleq a3yl ‘siaNs 3yl Aq pled %00T 29 pjnoys |10
pue [an4 yonJ1 pue ‘sae4 Sui[oAday ‘sea4 Buiddi] yses} ayi eyl po1oA IYMS YL

‘UoIENIJ|BI DY) U0 12840 ou aAey pue Ajuo AJO3ISIY pue uoljewlloul

10} 24e A4 JUBAIND, PUB SUWN|OD ,Z2- PUE T-A4 SNOIA3I4,, BY) Ul S1aquinN

*Ad 198png ay1 ul p|os aq 0] paroadxa suayons

10 Jaquinu ay1 adejd 01 UWIN|0 ,P|OS JBqUINN,, B SI dJaYL ‘0Z-LT SMOY Ul ‘Os|y
‘uonlenaled 1axans

3y} ul papnaul ale (%00T “8'9) %0 uey) 1a1ea.8 anjea ,J9y2115%,, © YIM SWa}
931 Ajup "way ay3 4o} p21e8png aq 03 JUNOLWIE 3Y] Jo§ S| UWN|od A4 198png,, aylL
"S$)INUL Y1 J0J |10/19n4 pue ‘saa4 SujpAday

‘s994 Suiddi] 104 %00T 39 PINOYS 11 1eY1 PIPIIIP IYMS BYL 'S4 JSYOIIS B3 Wouy
3wo? 01 pa3adpng ASuow ay} JO JUNOWE Y3 SjuasaIdal uwnjod IS %, YL
*wAd 198png,, pue 193211 %, PRWEU SULWIN|OD Y} Ul e pPash siaquinu ay|
‘199Ys syl ,19101dun, NOA sssjun siaquinu anjg 2y 0} 1dasxa

sagueyd ajew jouued noA 1ey) os payraloud st 3193ys ay] "pasueyd aq 10U pnoys
pue pale|ndjed ale SI2Y10 ||y "P3WIIJUO0I 10 PaIsIUB 3¢ PINOYS an|g Ul siaquiny
'S994 43211S UOII.IS Jajsuel | ay) a1e|nd|ed 0] pasn aq ued }oayspealds siyj

:uonenajed HYMS

MIIAIBAD



Town of Middleton
Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleton, Massachusetts
01949-2253
978-777-3617
www.middletonma.gov

March 5%, 2024

Mr. Paul Stedman

District Highway Director
MassDOT District 4

519 Appleton Street,
Arlington, MA 02476

Mr. Stedman,

We write to you today on behalf of the citizens of Middleton to respectfully request a change to the
signalization at the state-owned intersection of Boston St. (Rt. 62) and N. Main St. (Rt. 114). As
recently expressed by our Town Administrator in a meeting with our State House delegation, we are
experiencing significant traffic issues all along the Rt. 114 corridor. A recent traffic study completed in
the fall of 2023 suggests that these issues will continue to increase in severity over the next five to ten
years if left unchecked. It is our understanding that a comprehensive review of the Rt. 114 corridor
takes time, and implementing a long term solution will take even longer. We look forward to working
on this together over the coming years, and we appreciate any guidance and support you could provide.

While we await these much needed improvements, we are committed to helping identify low cost high
impact changes to items such as shifting lane painting on existing roadways and updating signals
where appropriate. Specifically, we have identified the need for a “left turn arrow” for vehicles driving
north on Rt. 114 looking to turn onto Rt. 62 at the intersection described above. Under current
conditions, as little as one vehicle waiting to turn left can obstruct half the southbound capacity. This is
a significant contributor to hazardous and frustrating bottleneck conditions that create a safety issue as
vehicles attempt to rapidly change lanes to avoid the long line of vehicles stacked behind the left
turning vehicle. The addition of an arrow would provide immediate relief to this issue. While we
understand you must follow the process, we ask that a left turn arrow be installed as soon as feasible.

Cordially,

THE MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD

Jeftrey P. Garber, Chair Richard W. Kassiotis, Jr., Clerk

Debbie Carbone Brian M. Cresta

Kosta E. Prentakis Justin B. Sultzbach, Town Administrator



OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR
Town of Middleton
Memorial Hall
48 South Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949-2253
978-777-3617
www.middletonma.gov

February 29, 2024

To: Select Board; Town Administrator
From: Jackie Bresnahan, Assistant Town Administrator/HR Director
RE: Implementation of Collins Center Report

Board members, as you will recall, we completed a Compensation and Classification Study with the Collins
Center in 2021-2022. The three phases of the implementation included classification of employees to their
new grades, the One-Time Implementation Policy, and an ongoing phase which included the personnel
evaluation policy and merit pay policy as well as future evaluations of the market to stay current. This was an
incredible amount of work to get done in the time frame we accomplished it and I would like to take this
opportunity to thank the Board for the hard work of that process and allowing us to move forward with the
market refresh.

For this implementation, there are three tasks ahead of us from the report and I've laid them out below to
ensure consistency with the best practices we established previously, but with an understanding of the current
affordability concerns.

Classification

There are three positions (Veterans Director, Police Captain, and COA Outreach) that need to be classified
for the first time. These three positions, while not being classified in 2021-2022, have changed dramatically
since their inception. Updates to their job descriptions with the Collins Center have captured those changes. I
recommend all three be placed by the Board in the recommended grade the Collins Center provided. At the
meeting on Tuesday, I will be making a recommendation for placements in the grades based on the
previously used one-time implementation policy. The max these adjustments would add for FY 25 would be
$35,000.

Market Adjustments

In addition to this classification, we have the market refresh, which based on the data affects the positions in
grades A, B, and E the most significantly. We are recommending Grades A and B have the full market
adjustment implemented. We recommend Grade E’s market adjustment be split over two years. This includes
a $19,324.00 increase to the FY 25 for all positions in these grades.

Cost of Living

With support from the Collins Center, we recommend no COLA or Cost of Living Adjustment for positions
that received market adjustments. The COLA for FY 25 is greater than the suggested market adjustment for
Grade D so we recommend maintaining a COLA for that grade at this time. Grade C was within market, but
we commend maintaining the planned COLA for those employees. This makes no changes to the proposed
FY 25 budget as currently presented.

Merit Pay

On Tuesday, I will provide a revised total merit dollar amount based on these potential changes and the
increase to 1.5% the Board discussed on Operating Budget Saturday so the Board can provide direction.



100 Morrissey Boulevard
m Boston, MA 02125-3393
EDWARD J. COLLINS, JR. CENTER FOR PUBLIC MANAGEMENT P: 617.287.4824

UMASS ;01N W. McCORMACK GRADUATE SCHOOL OF POLICY AND GLOBAL STUDIES F: 617.287 5566
BOSTON  UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS BOSTON meccormack.umb.edu/ centers/cpm

colitns.center@umb.edu

Memorandum

TO: Jackie Bresnahan, Assistant Town Administrator/Human Resources Director
FROM: Becca Brienza Meekins, Public Services Manager

DATE: February 15, 2024

RE: Classification and Compensation Update — FY2024 Recommendations

Executive Summary

Please allow this memorandum to serve as a set of recommendations resulting from the FY2024
Classification and Compensation Study Update for the Town of Middleton. The Town of Middleton
retained the Edward J. Collins Center for Public Management (Collins Center) to conduct a full
classification and compensation study of three positions and a labor market survey for approximately 21
non-union positions. The study resulted in the classification of three previously un-classified positions,
accurate and legally compliant position descriptions for those three positions, updated labor market wage
data for all non-union positions, and recommendations for market adjustments if warranted.

Position Descriptions

The Collins Center project team began with a review of the three previously un-classified positions. Those
positions were the Veterans Services Director/Veterans Agent, the Outreach Coordinator for the Council
on Aging, and the Police Captain. To best understand the positions, responsibilities, qualifications
required, etc., the Center began with a review of existing job descriptions and a questionnaire for
incumbent employees to fill out. The questionnaires elicit information including but not limited to the
nature of the work performed, the complexity and scope of responsibilities and the requirements needed
to fill the position, if vacant.

After the collection of questionnaires, interviews were conducted with the incumbent employees to learn
more about the positions. The information gathered through the questionnaires and interviews was used
to develop the draft of position descriptions. The drafts were submitted to the Town for distribution to
employees and supervisors for comments. Comments will be received and incorporated into the final
drafts before completion of the study.

Rating of Positions for Classification & Internal Equity

Once descriptions were drafted, the Collins Center used a point factor rating method to objectively
evaluate the positions. The application of an objective position evaluation system that is consistently
applied to each position is critical in assuring the internal equity of the classification plan. The evaluation
system utilized by the Collins Center is one that has been successfully implemented in many municipalities
and other governmental organizations in the Commonwealth, including in a larger study completed in
Middleton in 2022. Each position was assigned a point factor in a series of categories, including those
listed below.

1
Town of Middleton
FY24 Classification and Compensation Study Update Recommendations



Supervision Received

Supervision Exercised

Accountability

ludgement Complexity Personal Contacts
Confidentiality Education/Licenses Experience
Work Environment Physical Requirements Motor Skills

Physical Skills

Occupational Risks

Using the existing classification schedule implemented in a previous project with the Town, the project
team incorporated the three positions evaluated in this study, resulting in an updated classification
structure reflected below. The highlighted positions indicate positions reviewed as part of the most

recent update.

DEPARTMENT POSITION TITLE RECOMMENDED TITLE GRADE
Police Police Captain Deputy Chief E
Public Works DPW Superintendent E

Administration

ATA/HR Director

Treasurer/Collector

Treasurer/Collector

Conservation

Library

Conservation Agent

Assistant Director

Assessing Principal Assessor D
Inspectional Services Building Commissioner D
Council on Aging Director D
Public Works Deputy DPW Sup. D
Health Director D
Library Director D
Planning Town Planner D

D

D

Veterans Agent/VSO

Assessing

Veterans Director

Deputy Assessor

Town Clerk

Assistant Town Clerk

Treasurer/Collector

Council on Aging

Assistant Treasurer/Collector/Payroll & Benefits Coor.

Assistant Director

Police

Confidential Admin Asst to the Police Chief

Administration

Confidential Admin Asst to the TA Office

Council on Aging

Outreach Coordinator

P > (> | >

2
Town of Middleton

FY24 Classification and Compensation Study Update Recommendations




Updated job descriptions will benefit the town in recruitment efforts, performance measurement efforts,
and ensure compliance with laws and regulations related to pay equity, the Americans with Disabilities
Act, and the Fair Labor Standards Act. Titles of the positions reviewed are in line with market titles for
similar positions in other communities, however, the project team recommends modifying the Police
Captain’s title to Deputy Chief.

Succession planning is becoming an area of focus for many municipalities across the state. With a
shrinking qualified labor pool, an extraordinarily competitive labor market, and constrained resources,
municipalities are focusing inward to nurture existing talent with a desire to lead, which leads to
opportunities for retention and growth within a department, thus reducing the risk of turnover.
Numerous studies have revealed the cost of attrition to be much higher than the cost to retain and train
existing staff. As the market becomes,more competitive, the Center has continued to recommend to
communities to explore opportunities for growth within the organization, rather than competing
externally, particularly when there are competent and willing staff within the organization already. The
Police Captain's current role is clearly second in command to the Chief of Police. The position is
administrative, exempt from FLSA, and is integral in developing and administering department-wide
policy. Given these factors, we recommend modifying the title to reflect the second in command status
to Deputy Chief.

Currently, the Director of Veterans Services/VSO is paid with a stipend. This method of compensating part-
time staff is not uncommon but is often based on a methodology of average hours worked per week in
combination with a market wage for the position. The Director of Veterans Services position was analyzed
and classified as part of this project. As a result, the Center recommends combining the average number
of hours worked per week and multiplying that by a rate within Grade C to establish the stipend amount.
This methodology considers hours worked, the classification of the position, and the market wages
associated with it.

Market Salary Survey

The project team received data from 8 of Middleton’s 12 selected market municipalities. Those
municipalities were: Boxford, Hamilton, Ipswich, Littleton, North Reading, Rowley, Topsfield and
Wilmington. To supplement the additional 8 municipalities, the project team also utilized data from
Andover, Beverly, Burlington, Essex, Gloucester, Newburyport, Peabody, Reading, Rockport, Salem,
Salisbury, Stoneham, Swampscott, Tewksbury, Wenham and Woburn. The project team conducted two
analyses of data, one with the larger group of municipal data, and one only including the 8 selected market
municipalities. The analyses of Middleton’s wages against the 8 selected comparable municipalities, as
well as the larger group, yielded similar results, suggesting clear market wage ranges for selected
positions.

To ensure accurate comparisons, the Center evaluated hourly rates across the market communities
selected. The variety of workweek schedules requires the pay analysis to be conducted on an hourly basis.
The Center evaluates both average and median pay. The analysis of the median pay helps to mitigate
outlying data points.

3
Town of Middleton
FY24 Classification and Compensation Study Update Recommendations



Salary Schedule Update Recommendations
Middleton’s existing salary schedule is comprehensive and within industry standards, with ranges of 30%
for each established grade. Using the median and average maximum pay for positions within each grade,

the Center recommends the following modifications to the existing ranges for FY2024.

These

modifications should be treated as market adjustments and do not consider cost of living increases

established for FY2025.

DPW Superintendent
L]

\Administration

ATA/HR Director

Treasurer/Collector

Treasurer/Collector

Assessing Principal Assessor D
Inspectional Services Building Commissioner D
Council on Aging Director D
Public Works Deputy DPW Sup. D
Health Director D
Library Director D
Planning Town Planner D

D

Library

Assistant Director

o

C

Veterans Agent/VSO Veterans Director C
Assessing Deputy Assessor B
Town Clerk Assistant Town Clerk B

Treasurer/Collector

Assistant Treasurer/Collector/Payroll &
Benefits Coor.

Council on Aging Assistant Director A
Confidential Admin Asst to the Police

Police Chief A

Administration Confidential Admin Asst to the TA Office A

Council on Aging Outreach Coordinator A

FY24 Market
RECOMMENDED Current FY24 Adjustment
DEPARTMENT POSITION TITLE TITLE GRADE Range Range
Police Police Captain Deputy Chief E
Public Works E | $46.13 | $59.96 | $51.54 | $67.00

$41.00

$53.30

Conservation Conservation Agent '

$35.88 | $46.64

$27.68 | $35.98

$24.60 | $31.98

$41.83 [ $54.38

None -
Within
Market

None -
Within
Market

$29.04 | $37.75

$26.57 | $34.54

a
Town of Middleton

FY24 Classification and Compensation Study Update Recommendations



Conclusion

The Collins Center would like to thank the Town of Middleton for their continued partnership and
recognize the Town for their commitment to ensuring their classification and compensation plan remains
current and competitive. We believe that this updated plan will serve the Town well in current and future
recruitment and retention efforts.

5
Town of Middleton
FY24 Classification and Compensation Study Update Recommendations



suoEpUBWILOIFY 1epd( ApNis uonesuadWoD pue UOEIYISSE]D YZAS
UO013|pPPI J0 Uumo]
9

98’1 850 Z0'vES 0€'SES 88'GES 1uady SUBJIDIDA/JD1HQ 3DIAIBS SURIDIDA
‘100
e EEiS vces 66°€ES 89'L2$ sujouag 3 |[04Aed/10129]|0D /13inse3I | Emum_mmw
699 8.9 69°LYS 8LLYS 00'THS 10339]10)/J3.nseal |
[AAl] 95'C 01825 vz 0es 89°LCS }3[J Umoy] juessissy
9t'6 ¥Z'6 9€°'0SS 7 00°T¥S ‘dng mda Aindaq
9701 €911 62°95% 99°LSS €T 9vS wspuauLiadng pMda
6T'S €Ly 6L°62$ €€°6CS 09°vTS J314D 331|0d 341 0} IsSY UILIPY [elIUSPIIUQ)
12T 80°C vE8rS T2 81S E€T9S urterde) 31|04
TL°L 9¢g's TL81S 9£'9PS 00°TPS {3uue|d umo]
09°€ €6°0 817'6€S 18'9€S 88°9ES 10303.1Q Juelsissy Aseuqn
144 0s'€ YL EPS (015974729 00°THS Jo1dauig Aeign
00T LT9 00°EYS LTLYS 00° TIPS - Jsuorssiwwo) Suip|ing
YA €79 STYS ETLYS 00 TIPS 163934ia YyesH
180 sl L89TS 91'9Z% 89°/TS 401eulpJ00) Y2eannQ s1IeA/YOD
8L°L 6E'6 8€°7ES 66'€ES _ 09°12S 1032341 JUelsissy YOI
981 er't vT6ES LS'6ES 00'TPS 40333419 VO2
8S9'S 05's €V'SES 05°9€S 00'THS Wady uoljeaasuo)
8¢ LTS 9T'TES G8'7E$ 89°L7S lossassy Aindag
| XA 9L TTSPS 29°81S 00 TIPS lossassy |edidulig
vs'9 799 YT TES CTTES 09'v¢s 91HO0 V1 24l 01155y UlLIpY |eljuapyuo)
JA'A 7 TLL 09°'05$ ¥8°€5S eT s 10323410 YH/VLY
WinWiulAl wnuuinl Wwhwiwin WnUn 91y Wnwiuiin 31111 ONILSIX3A
uelpa snullnl a8esony uelpalal 98esany Aaaing ua.un)
uoR|PpPIN snuiy Aaning uo13|ppiN
uol3|ppIN

WNWIUTN A3AING 1IN JO Arewiwuing



suolepuawwodsy arepdn Apnis uonesuadwo) pue ueneIYISSe]D tZAd
UOIR|PPIA JO umo]
L

oLt 8LV ¥6'8€S 98 TS 79°9%S JUB3Y SUBIIIBA/ISDIHQO DIINISS SUBIIIDA
) Plele
sre o6y 9T'6ES 88075 seses slyyausg g ||0JAed/i10109(|0) /1a4nseal | H:Em_mmw
200 e 8T ESS TL98S 0E°€SS 10139|[0D/4aunseal |
8L'T CT'T oz veS 98'ES 86'G€S i 343D UMO] juelsissy
L0'S (48] LE°'8SS 7658 0€'€SS "dng mda Aindaq
v8'L 04'0T 08'£9$ 99'0L$ 96'65$ uspuduladng mda
66'€ ar’e L6°GES AT 86'TES J314D 21|04 BY1 01 15SY UILUPY [EIUBPIUO) |
A 3 LE9 8£'09S €6'T9S 96'65S uieide) ao1j0d
€Ly 9T'¥ £€0'3SS ) aVAS 0£'€SS Jauue|q umoy
Ev'E v0°'¢C TZErS 09'vbS ¥9'9vS 1030311 Juelsissy Ateagn
€LC T0'C = €095S TE'SSS 0£'€Ss Joyang Meiqn
6T'T 8L°C 61 7SS 80955 R 0£'€SS Jauotssiwuwio) sulp|ing
Wy ¥S'y TLLSS ¥8'£5$ 0£°'€S$ 10109410 Y3JeaH |
09'¢ Lt PETES TTCES 86°GES Jojeulpioo) Yoealing s1vA/Y0D
144 ¥38'8 rovs 78'0pS 86'TES 40323.1Q JUBISISSY YOI
18'S 0S'y 67 (1S 08'8v$ 0£'€S$ 10323110 YOD |
VTET 8¢t 9T°0vS 8'aps 0£°€SS juasdy uoljeAlasuo)
9T'€ LE YT 6ES 04'6€$ 86°SES Jossassy Aindaq
96°0 96'¢ 9Z°15S 97'£S$ 0€°€9S 1055955y |ed1oUld |
1€9 9¢'8 67°8€S €' 0vS 86'TES 92O V1 3Y1 01 1SSY UIWIPY |[enUIpYUOD
6EY LE'S SEY9S £€'69$ 95°65$ 10193410 ¥H/VLY
Winwixejp| wnwixel wnwixep wnwixenl )1y wnwixe I1LIL ONILSIXA
uelpalAl snulll | a8esany snulAl ueipaiN a8esany uLaIn)
UOI9|PPIN Uo13|pPpIN >w>‘_=m >wE=m UO19|PPIN

wWnWixey £9A1ng 193IeN Jo AleWWING




suonepuawiwodlay aepdn Apnis uonesuadwo) pue UolelIssSeD FZAd
UOIBIPPIN jO umo ]
8

680 680 LL9ES LL9ES 88'GES 1US8Y SUBIDIBA/ID1JJ( 3IIAIAS SURIDIDIA
vl L8l 0T'6z% S5'62% 89'LTS sujauag 13 ||oJAed/i0109)|0) /124nsEDU | EBM_MM,W
€L'€E Wy ELVVS rsvs 00° TS J40333||0)/434nseal L
LT'T €0'C 75'9¢$ 99'SZ$ 89°/7S H43[D UMO JUEISISSY
09'9 09'9 09°L¥S 09'L¥S 00°'T¥S ‘dns Mda Aindaq |
£5°9 L0'6 99°75$ 0T'SSS A TAS WSpUAULAANS MdQ |
67'C 6€'T 68°92$ 66'S7$ 09'¥2$ 131YD ad1j0d Y3 01 1SSy UIWIPY [elIUBPLUOD
v8'v 6€'C £6°05$ 75°87S ET'9VS$ urede) 22104
€T°CT ET'v €T°ESS ET'SPS 00°'T¥S Jauue|d umo|
0S'E 9¢'C 8€°7ES 75°€€S 88'GES Joyoauiqg elsissy Aleiqr
L6'T €7°S L6'TVS €T9VS 00°TVS Jopaug Aeugn
081 v6'v 08'¢Yrs v6'Sv$ 00'T¥S Jauolssiwo) suip|ing

&0 6€°€ vLTYS 6E VS 00°'T¥S Jopauig yesH
86'T 680 0/°5T$ 64925 89'/7% 10}euipoo) ydeasnQ Ss1IvA/Y0D

[ 8. 8L, 8€7€$ 8E7E$ 09'v7$ 10103.1Q JUEISISSY VOO
00°€ S9'C 00°8¢$ GE'8ES 00° TS 103211q YOD
€18 6L 88'7€$ TLEES 00 TtS ) 1Ua8y UoeAIBSUO)
v0'T wi 22828 0162 89°/2$ Jossassy Aindaq
€L'€ oLV ELVYS 0LSP$ 00°1tS 1055355y |ediduld
68°L v1'8 61'TES v1CeS 09'%¢$ 210 VL Y3 03 1SSY UIWIPY [BIIUSPHUOD)
8E'¥ 65'8 15°08$ TLPss €T°9v$ 10392410 YH/V 1Y

wnwiuy whwiuiw wnuwiuy wnwiugn aley wnwiuin J1LIL ONILSIX3
uelpalAl snuiiAl 98esany uelpa 98esany Aaning S UTEYR] o)
uod|ppIN snuI Aaning UoB|pPpPIN
uoIl|pPpPIN

(senieddiunp] palos(as UOIBPPI 8 ATUO SIPNIU]) WINWIUTY A2AING 19)IE JO ATeWIWng



SUOIIEPUSWIWOIY 3lepdn Apnis uonesuadwo) pue UOREIYISSED YZAL

U0I3|PPIIA JO UMO]
6

SS'TT \aardn mo.mmw ON._wmm .vm.m¢m ucwm< mcm‘_waw>\..wu_t0 9DIAIDS SURIDIOA
reo HEE 6L'9ES SLLES sesEs sujauag g ||oJAed/10139}|0)/1ainseal] EBM_MMw
18°C €Te 11°95S €995 0€'€ss 10309||0D/134nseal |
1243 ¥6°€ §5°7€S r0'TES 86°5ES M31D UMO L JUE)SISSY
er'T vTT €LVSS ¥S'¥SS 0€'€SS "dns Mdd Andag
6 8¢’ 80°69% ¥€'89% 96'655 B uspuuLIRdNS Mda
ST'T €T ETEES TTEES 86'TES 31D 301j0d 9] 0] 1SSy UIWIPY [ellUaplLLO)
L9 99°'S £0'79% T'T9S 96'65$ ureide) adjjod
6v'¢ 810 61°SSS TT°ess 0£°€SS Jauue|d umo|
S6°S (4084 0L 0vS (4 N4 9" 9vs J03a41q Juelsissy Aleuqry
6EV €T’e 69°/SS £°99S 0£'€SS Jopaug Aeugn
910 900 9%'€SS 9£'€SS 0£°€SS 12U0ISSIWIWO) Sulpjing |
ST'0 oT't St'ESS o vSS 0€°€SS 40133117 YijesH
ST'E 6€'€ 66°0€S ET'IES 86°S€ES J0leuIplo0) Yoeasing sIBA/YOD
'8 '8 oS rovs 86°TES J012341J JUelsissy YOO
T8 YAYA 8T°SPS S09vS 0£°€SS 10339110 YOO
LS'TT SCET €L TS S0°0vS 0€'€ss U338y UOI1EAISSUOD
6.0 T LL9ES wrLes 86°SES Jossassy Aindag
v6°0 £8°C vTrss €1°95% 0€°ess Jossassy |ed|dulid
1€9 09°L 62°8€S 89°6£S 86'TES 0O VL 3yl 01 15SY UIWPY [elIuapluoDd
06°¢ 09t 98795 95'179% 95°'65% . 4033410 YH/V 1Y
wnwixen wnwixew wnuwixe| wnwixelpl 91ey wnwixel 31111 ONILSIX3
uelpd snuinl | 285 JBAY ShUlAl uelpayy afeiany uaUN)
uolBPPIN UOIBIPPIIA Aoning Asmung ucI3|PPIA

(senireddrunpy pajoa(as UCISIPPIA 8 A[UO SIpNoU]) WNWIXe| 4A3AInS Jo¥Iey Jo ATewwng



